CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Cathedral Pines Meeting
Wednesday, January 20, 2021 10:00 AM - 12:30 PM (MDT)

Please join the meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone,
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/7 18770333
You can also dial in using your phone.
United States (Toll Free): 1 866 899 4679
United States: +1 (571) 317-3116
Access Code: 718-770-333

Public Welcome
Board of Directors
Bill Heeter, President Term Expires May 2022
Lynn Shepherd, Vice President Term Expires May 2023
Ecton Espenlaub, Treasurer Term Expires May 2022
John Kelley, Secretary Term Expires May 2023
Rick Stauch, At Large Term Expires May 2022
AGENDA

L

7.

Call to Order
a. Meeting operating under previously adopted Emergency Resolution 2020-3-1

Declaration of Quorum/Director Qualifications/Reaffirmation of Disclosures

Approval of Agenda

Approval of Board Meeting Minutes — Regular meeting on November 17, 2020 (see attached)
Adoption of Posting Resolution (se¢ attached)

Election of Board Officers for 2021
a. President, Vice President, Secretary/Treasurer, Assistant Secretary (link here to vote;
https:/form jotform.com/210064228385048)
b. Division of responsibilities -landscape, lodge, etc. local community liaison, El Paso County,
community issues, HOA liaison, Newsletter

Financial Matters
4. Review of Unaudited Financial Statements as of December 31, 2020 (see attached) — Kevin/Ecton
b. Approval of Payables for the Period Ending December 31 , 2020 (see attached) — Kevin
c. Review and approval of Bill.com implementation
d. 2021 Budget Review — Kevin, Ecton, John
e. Status of COVID-19 Relief Application and FEMA reimbursement — Kevin

Objectives for 2021 - Discussion

Page| 1



Lodge - Lynn

Landscaping - Bill

Trail Maintenance — Ecton

Ancillary Programs (Recycling Event, Holiday Decorating, etc.) ~ Bill
By-Laws and Code of conduct — Bill

I

7. Status of Metro Contracts for 2021
a. Annual Service contracts (see attached)
Walker Schooler District Managers (see attached current and new contract)
Warren Management (see attached)
White Bear Ankele Law Firm (see attached)
Lodge Management — recently amended
Landscaping and Snow Removal — A Cut Above (under separate cover)
b. Long term contracts
¢ Rental of Storage Shed - A Cut Above
Security Servies for Lodge and Storage Shed
Fire maintenance
Waste Connections
Pond management
¢. One time contracts/work orders
* Emergency Repairs, Electrical Concerns, Cleaning, Tree Removal

9. Status of Metro Project Proposals for 2021

Tree Trimming and Removal

Resealing Asphalt and Addition of Parking Spaces at Lodge
Sealing of Exterior of Lodge

Pond Maintenance

Long-term Landscape Design Plan for Community

U S I

10. Lodge Management Update ~ Lynn/Lina
a. Status of current and future operations — Lina
b. Lodge Improvements for 2021

11. HOA Update — Rick

12. Legal Matters
a. Homeowners’ Release from Liability for Maintenance of Adjacent Land — Kevin and Bill

13. New Business
a. Temporary Signage Guidelines - Ecton

14. Public Comment (Items Not on the Agenda Only. Comments limited to 3 minutes per person and taken in
Order in Which They Appear on Sign-Up Sheet)

15. Other Business
a. Schedule Board Meetings day/time/dates for balance of 2021

16. Adjournment

Page |2






75

WALKER SCHOOLER
DISTRICT MANAQERS

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
HELD NOVEMBER 17, 2020
AT 10:00 A.M,

Pursuant to posted notice, the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Cathedral Pines
Metropolitan District was held on Tuesday, November 17% at 10:00 a.m., via telephone and video
conference call.

In attendance were Directors:
Bill Heeter
John Kelley
Ecton Espenlaub
Lynn Shepherd

Also in attendance were:
Kevin Walker, Walker Schooler District Managers
Rebecca Hardekopf, Walker Schooler District Managers
Jamie Adams, Warren Management

Lina Hoekman, Lodge Manager

1. Call to Order:
8. Meeting operating under previously adopted Emergency Resolution 2020-3-1: President Heeter
called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. and confirmed a quorum.

2. Approval of the Agenda: Director Espenlaub moved to approve the Agenda; seconded by Director
Shepherd. Motion passed unanimously.

3. Approval of Board Mecting Minutes — Regular meeting on October 20, 2020; President Heeter
clarified the subject is Mr. Ashley from A Cut Above under Management Matters. President Heeter

moved to approve the October 20, 2020 Meeting Minutes as amended; seconded by Director Shepherd.
Motion passed unanimously.

4. Lodge Management Update:
a. Status of current operations: Mrs. Hoekman reported there were 4 tours last month and
4 events were booked including a resident event. 5 events were executed and there was
one cancellation. She noted the Lodge is now under new COVID mandates which
limits the capacity to 25%. There are no scheduled events for November or December.

Mrs. Hoekman discussed social media and the Facebook Review Rating which is
currently a 2.6. She explained that back in the Spring, there was an unhappy client who



did not receive a refund and she had multiple family members leave negative reviews
on Facebook. Mrs. Hoekman discussed the implementation of the Client Feedback
Survey on Google. She requested the Board review the survey questions and provide
suggestions. Director Shepherd discussed the Mrs. Hoekman’s 2021 Contract. She
recommended they continue with the $3,500 flat rate compensation, but review
compensation quarterly for any changes as needed in 2021. The Board discussed
changing the Engagement Letter language surrounding compensation to a grant instead
of a salary so it can be reimbursed by the Cares Act funds. Director Kelley requested
that the monthly status report be sent in advance. The Board discussed the status of the
Cares Act application and the requirements in detail. President Heeter moved to
authorize the appropriate District officials to modify the contract per Board discussion
on grants and the application to the State; seconded by Director Shepherd. Motion
passed unanimously.

b. Marketing and Packaging of Future events — update: Mrs. Hoekman discussed the
smaller event packages and that there have only been a few inquiries. Director
Shepherd discussed the struggles with booking due to the uncertainty of the current
environment with COVID-19. Mrs. Hoekman reached out to local hotels who do not
have meeting space to possibly partner with them and offer off-site meeting space.
Mrs. Hoekman noted she has received interest from brides to book in 2021 and 2022.

c. Status of building of wall in Bridal area: Mrs. Adams reported that she has not heard
back from the ABC contractor on timing due to them having staffing issues. Mrs.
Hoekman noted she knows of a veteran-owned handyman service, so he will reach out
to them.

d. Status of RFPs for Parking Lot sealing/expansion: Mrs. Adams discussed the RFP’s for

the parking lot sealing and expansion. Her recommendation is Seals and Stripes due to

their high-quality product and good reputation. She noted she is still waiting on getting

RFP’s back. Mrs. Adams will request a bid for curb and gutter from Seals and Stripes as

well.

e. Approval of Waste Connections contract for 2021: Mrs. Adams reported they sent the
cancellation to Waste Management so they can start the new contract with Waste
Connections in January.

f. Update on Security System/Consolidation of Fire Alarm Monitoring etc.: Mr. Walker

reported they should receive 3 bids, so they are making progress. President Heeter noted

he uses Homerun Electronics at home, and they are very economical and reliable.

5. Financial Matters:

a. Review of Unaudited Financial Statements as of October 30, 2020: Mr. Walker reported
they have collected 100% of taxes and revenues for the year. Cash position is good at
$128,000 and that includes bills paid in the last few months, and there are no
outstanding capital expenditures.

b. Approval of Payables for the Period Ending November 11, 2020: Ms. Hardekopf noted a
change to the payables; an increase of $550 due to an event cancellation. Director
Espenlaub moved to approve the Payables as presented. Director Kelley asked the Board
about A Cut Above charge for ice melt application that costs $1,200. Mr, Walker noted
there is no liability if they discontinue the ice melt application. The Board agreed to
discontinue the ice melt application for $1,200 and to add a note in the newsletter about
contacting the County regarding the roads. The motion was seconded by Director
Shepherd. Motion passed unanimously.

c. Public Hearing on the 2021 Budget and 2020 Budget Amendment presentation and



discussion: President Heeter opened the Public Hearing, After no public comment,
President Heeter closed the Public Hearing.
* Consider approval of a Resolution amending the 2020 budget and adopting
the 2021 budget: Mr. Walker presented the Amended 2020 Budget and 2021
Budget. President Heeter moved to approve the Resolutions amending the
2020 Budget and adopting the 2021 Budget; seconded by Director
Espenlaub. Motion passed unanimously.

d. Update on Status of final FEMA claim amount: Mr. Walker noted they are still waiting on

e. Status of COVID-19 Relief Application/Discussion of guidelines for usage and reporting:

There was no additional discussion. Director Shepherd and Mrs. Hoekman left the
meseting.

6. Management Matters:

a0

Consideration of RFPs for 2020/2021 Landscaping and Snow Removal; Mrs. Adams
discussed the RFPs received for landscaping and snow removal and noted that A Cut
Above’s RFP was the cheapest. After further discussion, the Board agreed to award the
contract to A Cut Above for 2021. President Heeter moved to award the 2021 contract to
A Cut Above for both landscaping and snow removal with ice melt only upon request by
the Board; seconded by Director Espenlaub. Motion passed unanimously.
Utilization of Storage Shed: The Board discussed if they use it for storing A Cut
Above’s equipment, it will need a security system and limited access, as well as draft a
rental agreement. The Board agreed to $5 per square foot rental rate for a one-year term.
Trails/Community Maintenance — Winter Projects:
Landscapmg, Irrigation and Ponds
Additional tree plantings on median/removal of dead trees: President Heeter
discussed the tree transplants and noted the soil is very bad in the medians.

» Status of Long-term Landscape Strategy RFP: President Heeter discussed
the RFPs and will distribute to the Board for review once they are all
received.

» Discussion of 2021 Landscape priorities

* Install irrigation lines along Lodge Drive for new pines
» Winslow entrance discussion: President Heeter noted he has not
gotten a response back from the homeowner, but he may get a
map which will outline which trees are on Metro District
property so they can be removed to provide more visibility.
Recap of Annual meeting with HOA: President Heeter reported that 2 new HOA Board
members were elected by unanimous acclimation, and the HOA Budget was approved
as well. Director Kelley commented that he thought there was not going to be a Metro
District presentation at the HOA meeting, but there was a presentation given. He would
like the Board members to be given the opportunity to review the information that is
being presented. President Heeter responded that it was discussed as an informal
presentation, but next time he will send out the information beforehand.
Renewal of Service Contracts: President Heeter discussed the HVAC contract and
needing to get new bids for general maintenance. He also requested new bids for Tall
Timbers as well. Mrs. Adams noted they do not have a contract with Tall Timbers, and
they are used as needed. Director Kelley discussed the Lodge Manager contract as well
as comments on Warren Management and WSDM. He requested a Special Board
meeting to discuss those 3 contracts in detail and his recommended changes to them.



The Board will determine which date works best for a special meeting.
» WSDM,LLC
» Warren Management

1. HOA Update: There was no additional discussion.
a. HOA Annual Meeting ,
b. New Board members
¢. 2021 Budget/Priorities for Year

8. Legal Matters:
a. Land disposition/draft of easement documents: Mr. Walker discussed that he spoke with

Mr. Allen regarding an easement document draft that should be available for review soon.
9. New Business: There was no discussion.
10, Public Comment: There was no public comment.

11. Other Business:
8. Next Regular scheduled Board Meeting on January 19, 2021 10:00 a.m. (No December

Meeting)

12. Adjournment: Director Kelley moved to adjourn; seconded by Director Espenlaub. Motion passed
unanimously at 11:45 a.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

By: Kevin Walker, District Manager

THESE MINUTES ARE APPROVED AS THE OFFICIAL NOVEMBER 17, 2020 MINUTES OF
THE CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SIGNING BELOW:

Bill Heeter, President

Lynn Shepherd, Vice President

Ecton Espenlaub, Treasurer

John Kelley, Director



Rick Stauch, Director







RESOLUTION 2021-01-01
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

CONCERNING ESTABLSHNG 24 HOUR POSTING LOCATION FOR
NOTICE OF REGULAR AND SPECIAL MEETINGS DURING 2021

WHEREAS, the Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District (the “District”) is a quasi-
municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 24-6-402(2)(CYIV), C.R.S., the District is a local public body
and subject to the provisions of §§ 24-6-401, et seq., C.R.S.; and

WHEREAS, § 24-6-402(2)(c)(D), C.R.S. requires that any meetings at which the adoption
of any proposed policy, position, resolution, rule, regulation, or formal action occurs or at which
a majority or quorum of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) is in attendance, or is expected to
be in attendance, shall be held only after full and timely notice to the public; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 24-6-402(2)(c)(I), C.R.S., the District shall be deemed to have
given full and timely notice if the notice of the meeting is physically posted in a designated public
place within the boundaries of the District no less than twenty-four hours prior to holding the
meeting; and

WHEREAS, the Colorado Legislature recently enacted House Bill 19-1087 (effective
August 2, 2019) declaring its intent that local governments transition from posting physical notices
of public meetings in physical locations to posting notices on a website, social media account, or
other official online presence of the local government to the greatest extent practicable; and

WHEREAS, § 24-6-402(2)(c)X(I), C.R.S., provides that, in addition to any other means of
full and timely notice, a local public body shall be deemed to have given full and timely notice if,
on or after July 1, 2019, the notice of the meeting, with specific agenda information if available,
is posted on a public website of the local public body no less than twenty-four hours prior to the

holding of the meeting; and

WHEREAS, the Board has determined to begin posting notices for all regular and special
meetings starting August 2, 2019 on a public website in accordance with § 24-6-402(2)(c)(D),
C.R.S.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD AS FOLLOWS:

1. The Board hereby designates the following public website for the posting of its
regular and special meeting notices: https://cathedralpinesmd.colorado.gov/

2, The Board hereby directs WSDM, LLC (the “District Manager™), to the extent
feasible, to make the notices searchable by type of meeting, date of meeting, time of meeting,
agenda contents, and other category deemed appropriate by the Board and Manager.

2208.0007; 1003240



3. The Board hereby directs the District Manager to provide the District’s website, to
the department of local affairs for inclusion in the inventory maintained pursuant to § 24-32-116,
C.R.S.

4, If the District is unable to post notices on a public website in exigent or emergency
circumstances such as power outage or an interruption in internet service, the Board hereby
designates the following location for posting of its regular and special meeting notices:

Postal Boxes
13975 Milam Rd.
Colorado Springs, CO 80908

5. All postings pursuant to this Resolution shall commence after the effective date of
House Bill 19-1087.

ADOPTED this 20th day of January, 2021.
CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN

DISTRICT
By:
Officer of the District
Attest:
By:
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON
Attorneys at Law

General Counsel to the District






69°89Z'6) $ WioL
$ V101
Welifed jsasa] VN jueg anin
sjUIWWoY Whowry e1eQ uojiduasaq
ANNOJIV ANNd SNNIATN SANOH
69°89Z°61 $ WILOL

1587 -35[ 11181} $ |ozoe/1erzL 69021 uaipjep EYEuB) S|oyLY Jeeg SHUYM
yseu) - sbipc| 9Z°069 ¢ (0zZozezrzL S-8252-236¥199 WowefbeUep asem
edueusuiey /suzdes - sEpo| 00°000°Z $ |0zoz/LERL 8rbSlL WwawsGeURp UauBm
Welesinquial Auewatcuep - 49| 00°00S°E $ |0coz1erz) 8599 siefizusly PUISK] JOIOOYDS JOYeMm
SSRIAN - 26po| 0g0ve $ 120z 668. Ol smeag
(Aed-01y) sepuRN - 49| 62 225 $ [Lzozn |HOV DH1D8[3 MBIA LIBJUNOH
(upal) fed-ony) sennnn - 86po | £0'0¥ $ [Leozin [Hov 206 MBIA UjSuNow
s} Gupjoog - oBpo| 00°005'E $ 0ZoznerL 020211407 UBLYOOH Bun
sanian - efpoy| 1g'ezE $ [1zozsn 20201 Afieuz s Xoeig
(upa1) Aeg-oiny) Aunoog - ebipay| - $ |LZ0zZ/SLL FL862080F funoeg 1 av
feAcwioy Mmous - 85po /49| 00°0£9 $ | 120zl 010€Z $I0INIOG UMET BADQY IND)
[eAOWal Moug - aBpo| 00°0E $ |0Z0e/0e2L or6ez ST0INIBZ UMET eADqY IND
leaowes moug - 3Bpa| 007051 $ |ozoz/eziTL 90622 SEOIAISS UMET] BAOQY IND)
[BAOWEY MOUS - BEPOT /D] 00°211'S $ 02021121 62822 S30JAIBS UMET 8AOQY IND) VY
[eAowal mous - eGpo| 00°6zZ $ [120Z/0L1L Y9622 SADIAISG UMET BAOqY D Y
[BAOLLBI MOUS - & 00501 ¢ [LzozeLn 91082 S80JAJGS UMET BAOQY JND v
©OUBUBIUELI 2dedspuel - 35| 88268 ¢ [Lzozin S6622 SE0IAIOS LMET BAOGY IND Y

SJUSWIWIOYD junoury ejeq 9210AU] Auedwon

ANNOJJV ANNd TVHIANTD
L20¢e/0e/L
1S3ND3Y INIWAVC

JoLys|q uepjodosjey sauld [eipayes




Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District

410 PM
o1yt Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basle January through December 2020
Jan - Dac 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budgst
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
1-100 * GF INCOME
1-108 - GF Prop Tax Revenus 200,607.84 201,148.06 -540.21 98.7%
1110 « Specific Ownership Taxss 48,112.34 45,000.00 3,112.34 108.9%
1-116 - Delinquent Tax and Interest 208,10
1-120 - Rental Income - Lodge Events 57,7684.00 130,000.00 =72,216.00 44.4%
1148 - FEMA Funds 78,458,81
1-148 - Salas of Produot Income 0.00 3,000,00 =3,000.00 0.0%
1160 - Insurance Relmbursement ; 74,00
Total 1-100 - GF INGOME 386,246.08 $79,148.08 6,088.04 101.8%
1<180 : CVRF Grant 38,831.76
2100 - D8 INCOME
2106 - D8 Prop Tax Revenue 280,847.14 281,607,27 =780.13 90.7%
2-130 - DS Intersat Income 1,880.42 )
Total 24100 - DS INCOME _2!2,713.50 281,607.27 1.128.2! 100.4%
Total Income 704,781.41 o 880,7556.32 44,038.08 106,7%
Groes Proftt 704,781.41 880,755.32 44,036.08 108.7%
1]
1-1000 - SERVICES
110085 - Audit 8,100.00 8,250.00 =150.00 88,2%
1-1010 - Management Expense 42,000.00 42,000.00 0.00 100,0%
11018 : Mainbonance Management 24,000.00 25,000.00 =1,000.00 88.0%
11020 - Lagal Feoe 12,332.88 10,000.00 2,332,088 123.3%
Total 141000 - SERVICES 88,432.98 85,250,00 1,182.98 101.4%
1-2000 - LODGE
1-2001 - Lodge Management 31,785.50 48,800.00 =17,034.50 85.1%
1-201% - Booking Fee 1,150.00
1-2015 - Event Hosting/ Attsndant Fas 7,861.57
1-2020 - Event Supplies 815.01 3,000.00 -2,384.00 20.5%
1-2026 * Cleaning 685.00
1-2030 - Repairs and Maintsnance 8,382.26 16,000.00 -5,837.75 B82.4%
1-2036 - Udiitiea 8,256.57 8,000.00 -1,743.43 78.2%
1-2040 * Security 1,831.68 4,600.00 -2,668.32 40.7%
1-2043 - Capital Improvements - Q&M 10,183.18 25,000.00 -14,808.82 40.8%
1:2044 « Landscape Maintsnance 15,614.16 5,000.00 10,614.18 312.3%
1=2045 - Snow Removal 8,362.50 10,000.00 -1,637.50 83.8%
1-2060 * Trash 5,272.83 8,000.00 -1,727.07 76.4%
12085 * Telephone 2,768.98 3,300.00 =530.02 83.8%
1-4030 - Lodge Contingency ~0.00 10.000.!:_!!_) -10.000.09 0.0%
Total 1-2000 - LODGE 102,730.33 140,800.00 -37,860.87 73.1%
1-3000 - GF EXPENSES
1-3008 - Landscaps Malntenance 20,288.89 35,000.00 =5,713.01 83.7%
1-3010 - Repair & Maintsnance - O&M 56,668,860 35,000.00 24,888.69 170.5%
1-3018 - Snow Removal - O&M 20,031.76 16,000.00 4,031.78 125.2%
1-3020 - Utliities - OLM 16,885,60 27.500.00 -10,634.40 81.3%
1-3028 - Infrastructure Replacement 4,840.19 10,000.00 -5,050.01 49.4%
1-3030 - Blecton 208.08 3,000.00 -2,781.92 8.8%
1-3038 - GF - Contingency o 1,200.00 10,000.00 -8,800.00 12.0%
Total 1-3000 - GF EXPENSES 132,201.31 138,500.00 -4,298.89 86.0%
1-4000 - OTHER
1-4005 - Bank Charges 430,00 500.00 =70.00 86.0%
14010 - Insuranca/ Fess 8,912.47 12,000.00 -2,097.53 82.8%
1-40115 - Office Expsnaes 473.81 500.00 -28.39 084,7%
1-4020 - Collection Fee GF({Treasurer) 6,720.88 3,017.22 3,711.64 223.0%
Total 1-4000 - OTHER 17,544.84 16,017.22 1,627.72 108.5%

Page 1



Cathedral PInes Metropolitan District

4:10 PM
011821 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Baals January through December 2020
_ dan-Dac20 Budget § Over Budgst % of Bucdget
21000 - D8 EXPENSES
2-1006 * Trustes Foos 0.00 800.00 -800.00 0.0%
2-1010  Colloction Fee DS (Treasurer) 498,07 4,224,114 -3,720.04 M.7%
21018 - Bonid Principsl Pmts 0.00 65,000.00 -85,000.00 0.0%
2-1030 - Interest Exponas D3 210,762.50 219,782.50 0.00 100.0%
2-1038 - D8 - Contingency - 0.00 ~4,000.00 =1,000.00 0.0%
Total 21000 - DS EXPENSES 220,268.57 260,786,681 <70,528.04 75.7%
Total Expenas - 568,168.13 69,153.83 ~109,985.70  83.6%
Not Ordinary Incoma 145,623.28 -8,308.61 164,021.79 ~1,733.8%
Net Income 145,023.28 -4,398.59 154,021.78 -1,730.9%

Page 2



411 PM Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District

011321 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basls As of December 31, 2020
Dec 31, 20
ASBETS
Current Aszets
Checking/Savings
ECB Debt Service Fund 154,350.32
ECB General Fund 138,538.72
MM - CSafe Bond Fund UMB 0.53
Total Checking/Savings 202,889.57
Accounts Recelvable
Accounts Recelvable 8,706.00
Total Accounts Recelvable 9,708.00
Other Current Assets
Prop Tax Rec - Dabt Sve 311,843.19
Prop Tax Rec - Gn! Fund 169,611.81
12000 - Undeposited Funds 1,237.50
Total Other Current Assets 482,6892,50
Total Current Asssts 785,288.07
Fixed Aaseots
Community Center
Accum Depreclation -531,599.00
Original Cost 1,328,384.00
Total Community Center 7686,785.00
Equipment
Accum Depreclation -2,683.00
Equipment - Other 1:_!.922.00
Total Equipment 11,239.00
Parks, Tralls & Monument
Accum Depreciation -540,161.00
Original Coat 897,354,77
Parks, Tralls & Monument - Other 69.59414
Total Parks, Tralls & Monument 426,788.41
Total Fixed Assets 1,234,812.41
TOTAL ASSETS 2,020,100.48
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabllities
Current Liabllities
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable (A/P) 25,827.66
Tolal Accounts Payahle 25,827.6a8
Other Current Liabllities
Accrued [nterest - DSve 18,737.87
Deferred Prop Tax - D8ve 311,843.19
Deferred Prop Tax - Gnl 169,611.81
Deoposite- Lodge Events 25,950.00
Total Gther Current Liabliitles 528,142.87
Total Current Liabllitles 551,970.33

Page1



411 PM Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District

0111321 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basls As of December 31, 2020
Dec 31, 20
Long Term Liabliities
Bonds Payable 2016
Bond Premium 2018
A/A Bond Premium 2018 -65,260.36
Bond Premium 2018 - Other 414,881.70
Total Bond Premium 2016 340,621.34
Bonds Payable 2016 - Other 4,475,000.00
Total Bonds Payable 2016 B 4,824,621.34
Total Long Term Llabllitles 4,824,621.34
Total Lisbllites 5,376,501.67
Equity
Debt Sve / Cap Pro] Funds 155,808.00
General Fund-Restricted 8,054.00
General Fund-Unrestricted 33,873.00
Gov't Wide Fund Balance -3,741,036.79
32000 - Rotained Earnings 41,190.32
Net Income 145,623.28
Total Equity -3,358,491.19
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,020,100.48




Income and Expense by Month | Mincome |

January through December 2020 MExpense
$ in 1,000's
200
150
lojj ‘ J
Ju120 Sep20 Nov20
Feb20 Aug20 Dec20

Expense Summary 2-1000 - DS EXPENSES  39.39%,

January through December 2020 1-3000 - GF EXPENSES 23.64

1-2000 - LODGE 18.37)

M 1-1000 - SERVICES 15.46

1-4000 - OTHER 3.14

Total $559.168.13

By Account



Income and Expense by Month | Mincome |

January through December 2020 | IExpense/
$ in 1,000's
20{1L
150
100
Jan2. Ju120 Sep20 Nov20
Feb20 Aug20 Oct20 Dec20

Income Summary M1-100 - GFINCOME  54.66%

January through December 2020 M2-100 - DS INCOME 40.11

1-180 - CVRF Grant 523

Total $704.791.41

By Account






PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT AND
WALKER SCHOOLER DISTRICT MANAGERS

. THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“dgreement”) is made and entsred into
this [ day of _eCEWIER 2017, and shall commence on January 1, 2018, 2017 (“Effective Date”)
by and between the CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (“CATHEDRAL
PINES”) & quasi-municipal entity and political subdivision of the State of Colorado, and SCHOOLER
& ASSOCIATES, INC. DBA WALKER SCHOOLER DISTRICT MANAGERS a Colorado
corporation (the “Company™). Cathedral Pines and the Company may be collectively referred to as the
“Parties” and each individually as “Pargy”.

RECITALS AND REPRESENTATIONS

WHEREAS, Cathedral Pines desires to retain the Company to provide Cathedral Pines with
services of a professional, qualified District Manager and other services to Cathedral Pines as directed by

the Board of Directors of Cathedral Pines; and

WHEREAS, the Company represents that the Company has the personpel, skill, ability, and
expertise to perform the services desoribed in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Cathedral Pines desires to engage the Company to provide the services described in
this Agreement subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditians contained herein emd other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is bereby acknowledged, it is
mutually agreed by and between the Parties as follows:

1L LINE OF AUTHORITY: For purposes of this Agrecment, the Company's designated
representative is Kevin Walker and Lori VonFeldt (either the “Company Authorized Representative”)

2, SCOFE OF SERVICES: Company shall perform all services described in Exhibit A
diligently and professionelly and to the extent as may be directed by the Board of Directors of Cathedral
Pines.

Cathedrel Pines may, from time to time, request changes to the Services to be performed
hersunder. If agreed to by both Parties, Company will, within a reascnable time period, provide to
Cathedral Pines in writing 2 price and modification to services for the proposed addition to Services.
Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount of the Company's compensation, when
mutually agreed upon betwsen Cathedral Pines and Compeny, shall become an amendment to and part of
this Agreement, provided any such change is approved by Cathedral Pines in writing and signed by
Cathedral Pines Authorized Representative and by the Compeny Authorized Representative. Unless
otherwise stated in the written emendment, Company will invoice Cathedral Pines on the next billing
cycle after completion of the addition to Services or if the changs involves an ongoing new addition to the
Services, Company will includs the associated adjustment to the monthy compensation aimount.

3. COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES: In consideration for the provision of Services
described in Exhibit A, Cathedral Pines agrees to compensate the Company based on the following:

a. The Company shall submit invoices to Cathedral Pines in accordance with fhe terms of
this Agresment. Invoices will be billed to Cathedral Pines within 5 days of the end of every calendar



month. Cathedral Pines agrees to pay Company for services rendered no more than 30 days from receipt
of invoice from the Company.

b. Compary’s invoices shall be in a format acceptable to Cathedral Pines, shall be supported
by information in such detail as may be required by Cathedral Pines and shall be sufficient to substantiate
that the Company has performed the Services described in Exhibit A. With each invoics, if requested by
the Board of Directors, the Comparty shall submit an activity service report detailing the Services
provided in accordance with Exhibit A.

4, TERM: X is mutuslly agreed by the Parties that the term of this Agreement shall
commence as of the Effective Date and shall be in full force until terminated by the Board of Ditectors or
by the Compeny. The Term shall extend a the calendar year and be extended by agreement of both

parties for the following year unless otherwise amended.

5. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: The Company agrees that no official, officer or
employee of Cathedral Pines shall have any personsl or beneficial interest whatsoever in the Services
described herein, and the Company further agrees not to hire, pay, or contract for services of any official,
officer or employee of Cathedral Pines. A conflict of interest shall include transactions, activities or
conduct that would affect the judgment, actions or work of the Company by placing the Company’s own
interests, or the inferest of any party with whom the Company has a contractual arrangement, in conflict
with those of Cathedral Pines.

6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Company shall perform the Services s an
Independent Contractor. Cathedral Pines shall not be obligated to secure, and shall not provide, any
insurance coverage or employment benefits of any kind or type to or for the Compeny or the Compeny’s
employees, sub-Company’s, agents, or representatives, including coverage or benefits related but not
limited to: local, state, or federal income or other tax contributions; insurance contributions (e. g FICA);
workers’ compensation; disability, injury, or heaith; Company liability insurance, errors and emissions

insurance.

7. INDEMNIFICATION: The Company shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless
Cathedral Pines, its elected officials, officers, ditectors, agents, and employees from any and all claims,
demands, suits, actions or proceedings of any kind or nature whatsoever, in any way resulting from or
arising from this Agreement; provided, however, that the Company need not indemnify or save harmless
Cathedral Pines, its officers, agents and smployees from damages resulting from the negligence of
Cathedral Pines elected officials, officers, directors, egents, and employees. Company's defense,
indemnification and insurance obligations shall be to the fuilest extent permitted by law and nothing in
this Agreement shall be construed as requiring the Company to defend in litigation, indemnify or nsure
Cathedral Pines against liability arising out of the death or bodily injury to person or damage to property
cgused by the negligence or fault of Cathedral Pines or any third party exclusively under the control or
supervision of the District.

8. INSURANCE: The Company shall obtain and maintain the types, forms, and
coverage(s) of insurance deemed by the Company to be sufficient to meet or exceed the Company’s
minimum statutory and legal obligations arising under this Agreement, including the indemnification
obligations set forth in Section 7. At a minimum, Company shell maintain Professional Liability
Insurance Coverage (errors and omissions coverage) in en amount of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars
($500,000.00). The Company shall be solely responsible for any insurance deductible. The Company's
failure to obtain and continuously maintain policies of insurance in accordance with this Section shall not
limit, prevent, preclude, excuse, or modify any lisbility, claims, demands, or other obligations of the
Company arising from performance or non-performance of this Agreement.



9. NO WAIVER OF GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY ACT: The Parties hereto
understand and agree that Cathedral Pines, its elected officials, directors, agents and employees, are
relying on, and do not waive or intend to waive by any provisions of this Agreement, the monetary
limitations or any other rights, immunities and protections provided by the Colorado Governmental
Immunity Act, §§ 24-10-101 to 120, C.R.S., as the same may be amended from tims to time, or otherwise
available to the District.

10.  ASSIGNMENT: The Company covenants and agrees that it will not assign or transfer
its rights hereunder, either in whole or in part without the prior written approval of Cathedral Pines. Any
atiempt by the Company to assign or transfer its rights hereunder shall, et the option of Cathedral Pines
Authorized Representative, void the assignment or automatically terminate this Agreement and afl rights
of the Company hereunder.

11.  CATHEDRAL PINES REVIEW OF RECORDS: The Company agrees that, upon a
reasonable request of the Authorized Representative, at any time during the term of this Agreement or
thres (3) years thereafter, will make available for inspection and audit upon request by Cathedre] Pines
Authorized Representative, those books and records of the Company’s work performed under this
Agreement. Nothing construed herein shall be construed as a requirement that Company shall provide its
financiel records determined to be proprietary by the Company. The Compeny sha]l maintain such
records until the expiration of the three (3) years following the end of the term of this Agreement.

12,  OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS: Working papers, reports and other documents
prepared by the Company in connection with this Agreement shall be the property of Cathedra] Pines,
The Company shall provide Cathedral Pines with copies of any documents produced in association with
the Company’s Services within five (5) business days upon written request of the District. Company shall
provide any documents that may be required for disclosure pursuant to the Colorado Open Records Act,

13. TERMINATION: Cathedral Pines and the Company shall have the right to terminate
this Agreement, with or without cause, by giving written notics to the affected party of such tenmination
and specifying the effective date thereof, which notice shall be given at least thirty (30) calendar days
before the effective date of such termination. In such event, ail finished or unfinished documents, data,
studies, and reports which are considered to be documents subject to the Colorado Open Records Act
shall become the District's property. The Company shall be entitled to receive cotnpensation in
accordance with this Agreement for any satisfactory work completed pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement prior to the date of notice of termination and et the established compensation rate for the 60
days thereafter. Notwithstanding the above, the Company shall not be relieved of liability to Cathedral
Pines for damages sustained by Cathedre] Pines by virtue of any breach of the Agreement by the
Company. The Compemy’s indemnification obligations hersunder shall survive termination of this
Agreement

14,  NOTICES: Notices concerning termination of this Agreement, notices of alleged or
actual violations of the terms or provisions of this Agreement, and all other notices shall be mads as
follows:

To Cathedral Pines CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN
Metropolitan District: DISTRICT

6265 Lehman Dr.

Suite 100

Colorado Springs, CO 80918

Susemihl, McDermott & Cowan, P.C.

With & Capy to District
Comsel, . 660 Southpointe Court, Suite 210



Colorado Springs, CO 80906
Attn: Peter Susemihi

To the Company: Walker Schooler District Managers
614 N. Tejon St,
Colorado Springs, CO 80903

Said notices shall be delivered personally during normal business hotrs to the appropriate office
above, or by prepaid first-class U.S. mail, viz facsimile, emajl or other suitable electronic method, or
other method authorized in writing by Cathedral Pine’s Authorized Representative and the Company’s
Authorized Representative. Mailed notices shall be deemed effective upon receipt or three (3) working
deys after the date of mailing, whichever is earlier. The Parties may from time to time designate
substitute addresses or persons where and to whom such notices are to be mailed or delivered, but such
substitutions shall not be effective until actual receipt of written notification.

15. NONDISCRIMINATION: In connection with the performance of work under this
Agreement, the Company agrees not to refuse to hire, discharge, promote or demote, or to discriminate in
matters of compensation against any person otherwise qualified, solely because of race, color, religion,
national origin, gender, age, military status, sexual orientation, meritel status, or physical or mental
disability.

16.  TLLEGAL ALIENS: Company shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal
alien to perform work under this Agreement, Company shall not contract with a subcontractor that fails
to certify that the suboontractor does not knowingly employ or contract with any illega) aliens. By
entering into this Agreement, Compeny certifies that it has verified, or attempted to verify, through
participation in the basic pilot program that the Company does not employ any illegal aliens. If the
Compeny is not accepted into the basic pilot program, the Company shall apply to perticipate in the basic
pilot program every three months until the Company is accepted, or this Agreement had been completed,
whichever is earlier. The Company is prohibited from using the basic pilot program procedures to
undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while this Agreement is being performed. If the
Company obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor parforming work under this Agreement
knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, the Company shall be required to notify the
subcontractor and Cathedrel Pines within three (3) days that the Company has actual knowledge that a
subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien. The Company shall terminate the
subcontraot if the subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien within three
(3) days of receiving the notice regarding Company’s actual knowledge. The Company shall not
terminsate the subcontract if, during such three days, the subcontractor provides information to establish
that the suboontractor has not knowingly employed or contrasted with an illegal alien. The Cotnpeny is
required to comply with any reasonable request mads by the Department of Labor and Employment made
in the course of an investigation undertaken to determine compliance with this provision and applicable
state law. If the Company violates this provision, Cathedral Pines may terminste this Agreement, and the
Company may be liable for actual and/or consequential damages incurred by the District, notwithstanding
any limitation on such damages provided by such Agresment.



17. GOVERNING LAW; VENUE: This Agreement shall be deemed to have been made in,
and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado. Venue for any action hereunder shall

be in the District Court, County of El Paso, State of Colorado. The Company expressly waives the right
1o bring any action in or to remove any action to any other jurisdiction, whether state or federal.

18. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS AND REGULATIONS: All of the work
performed under this Agreement by the Company shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations
end codes of the United States and the State of Colorado, The Company shall also comply with all
applicable ordinances, regulations, and resolutions of Cathedral Pines and shall commit no trespass on
any public or private property in the performence of eny of the work embraced by this Agreement,

19, SEVERABLITY: In the event any of the provisions of this Agreament are held to be
unenforceable or invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the validity of the remaining provisions
shall not be affected, provided that the remaining provisions without the invalidated provisions are
consistent with the Parties® intent. Should either party fail to enforce a specific term of this Agreement it
shall not be a waiver of a subsequent right of enforcement, nor shall it be deemed a modification or
alteration of the terms and conditions contained herein.

20. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES: The enforcement of the terms and conditions
of this Agreement and all rights of action relating to such enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to
Cathedral Pines and the Company, and nothing contained in this Agreement shall give or allow any such
claim or right of action by any other or third person under such Agreement.

21. HEADINGS; RECITALS: The headings contained in this Agreement are for reference
purposes only and shall not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreament. The
Recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein.

22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: The Parties acknowledge and agree that the provisions
contained herein constitute the entire agreement and that all representations made by any elected official,
officer, director, agent or employee of the respective parties unless included herein are null and void and
of no effect. No alterations, amendments, changes or modifications to this Agreement, except those
which are expressly reserved herein to Cathedral Pines Authorized Representative and/or the Company
Authorized Representative, shall be valid unless they are contained in writing and executed by all the
Parties with the same formality as this Agreement.

23, FORCE MAJEURE: Neither Party shall be liable for damages, delays, ar failure to
perform its obligations under this Agreement if performance is made impractical or impossible, or
unpredictably and abnormally difficult or costly, as a result of any unforessen occurrence, inciuding but
not limited to fire, flood, acts of God, civil unrest, failure of a third party to cooperate in providing
services other than Company’s subcontractors, or other oceurrences beyond the reasonable contro! of the
party invoking this Force Majeure clause. The Party invoking this Force Majeure clause shall notify the
other Party immediately by verbal communication and in writing of the naiure and extent of the
contingency within five (5} business days after its occurrence or discovety of its occurrence, and shall
take reasonable measures to mitigate any impact of the event that iriggered the invoking of this Force
Majeure clause. If the Force Mejeure event shall impact schedule or increase the costs incurred by
Company, such items shall be handled in accordance with Section 2 and 3.

24. INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS: All exhibits referenced in this Agreement and
attached hereto shall be incorporated into this Agreement for all purposes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Cathedral Pines and the Company have executed this Professional Servioes
Agreement as of the above date.

COMPANY:



Schooler and Asso "ates, Inc., dba Walker Schooler District Managers, a Colorado corporation

J, Walker

vaTE:_ [2] (':/ (7

CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

BY: Tz —

CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

ATTEST:

DATE: -




|SCOPE OF WORK

Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District
Management Company Scope of Services

Thisﬁstofservicmisreﬁnedmreﬂedomundashndmgofmeneedsofthe%hid. Some
services may not be needed and additional services may be added as needed and identified.

a. District Management
i. Standard Services

@)

®)
(©

@

(e
&

®
&)

(@
V)

(k)
Y

Coordinate Board meetings, prepare and distribute meeting agenda.
Preparaﬁmﬁlﬁigandposﬁngoflega]ncﬁoesrequiredmmnjmicﬁmwiﬂlﬂte
meeting.

Ensure meeting notices are propetly and timely posted,
ContactBoardmembersﬂhmuspﬂortoascheduledmeeﬁngtomsu:ea
quorumwi]lbepresmtIntheevent‘ofacamelationofameeﬁng,contactand
adviseallpartiesofﬂlecancelaﬁonandanychangestothemeeﬂngdaﬁe,ﬁme
and place, if available.
Meeﬁngpacketswﬂlbedism'butedbyU.S.Maﬂand/oremaiLasdeminedby
theBoard,oneweeki:nadvameofeachmeeting.
Prepareforandattendmgu]arandspedalmeeﬁngsofmeBoard.
Drafbreﬁseandﬁnalizethemhutesofﬂlemeﬁnganddrculatemﬂleaﬂomey
forreviewandconmemtomsuzeaﬂstatutoryrequiremmtshavebeenm

.PmpareandmahtahareoordofaﬂBoardmembers,oomultantsmdvmdom.

Direct and oversee all service providers, consultants and employees.

Prepare and make annual compliance filings (but not judicial filings) with the
various State and County officials, as required. Coordinate review and approval
of annual compliance filings with the attorney.

Respond to inquiries made by various officials, property owners or consultants
in a timely and professional manner.

Set up and maintain the official records of the District and service as official
custodian for same pursuant to the Colorado Open Records Act.

Monitor requirements pertaining to HB 1343 (Illegal Aliens).

Insurance administration, including evaluating risks, comparing coverage,
process claims, completing applications, monitoring expiration dates,
processing routine written and telephone correspondence, Ensure that all
District contractors and subcontractors maintain required coverage for the
District's benefit. Obtain quotes for insurance annually.

b, Accounting

i. Standard Services
{(a) Accounting

L Prepare monthly, quarterly and annual financial statements for inclusion in



monthly meeting packets.
Reconcile monthly bank statements and trustee statements.
Coordinate bank account setup and maintenamce of signature cards,
Prepare and file Continuing Disclosure Notices with the Trustee and other
required parties. Coordinate review with legal counsel,
Coordinate capital project draws and requisitions.
Reconcile bonds and other debt service payment obligations for accuracy
and timely payments.
Respond to bondholder and other interested parties' requests for financial
information.
Review all payments of claim prior to release to ensure funds are available.
Monthly review of all expenditures and coordinate preparation and
distribution of same with the manager for the District to prevent
exceeding budgeted and appropriated expenditures.
(b) Accounts Payable
L Receive and review invoices for accuracy and appropriateness for
payment. Code the invoices in accordance with the budgeted line
item.
IL. Prepare issuance of checks to be presented to the Board for approval and
signatures. The claims list should be included in the monthly meeting

packets.
III. Prepare funding requests, if required.
IV. Release checks to vendors when all approvals and funding have been
received,
(c) Accounts Receivable
L Process deposit of revenues.
IL Process bank charges and other miscellaneous accounts receivable
. matters.
(d) Financial Projections
L Upon request, provide multi-year forecasting.
IL  Upon request, provide utility consumption and water rate analysis,
Il Uponrequest, provide commercial billing analysis and rate structure.

L Prepare annual budget and budget message for approval by the Board and
coordinate with legal counsel for same.

I  Prepare or assist in the preparation of supplemental and/or amended budgets
and accompanying documents, if required.

4] Audits

I Obtain proposals for conduct of audit for consideration at budget hearing
meeting, Proposals should be included in the meeting packet.

L Coordinate and participate in audit bids, engagements, ficldwork and audit
draft review.

mAsaist&neauditorhiperforming&wmalaudittoaommpﬁshﬁndy

?é § S< 4@gF

()

c. Other Services available but not specifically inclzded in this proposal



Covenant Enforcement
Development Consulting and Review
Construction Management



| FEES AND WORK SCHEDULE ]

> FEES
SZOO0.00pammthforDisuictMmagmserﬁmudemibedhtthcopeomeﬁ
LﬁhageRdmbummem(nmmmchemﬂmgebdwemmehomemdfmthe_HomeOﬁmlomdm
CohmdoSpﬁngsmdtthaﬁedmlPhesMe&opoﬁMDisﬁﬁ'sMxﬁnglooﬁm)wﬂhpﬁdﬂ&e
thmcmmﬂFeduﬂMﬂugeRahcmmﬂyuso.ﬁpﬁmﬂeﬂmgwithmimdlmmmjmﬁﬁedbwnm
expenses at cost,







INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT
(Management, Accounting and Billing Services)

This INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT, including any and all exhibits
attached hereto (the “Agreement”), is entered into as ofthe _____ day of _.2021,
by and between the Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District, a quasi-municipal corporatlon and
political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District™), and WSDM, LLC, a Colorado
Limited Liability Company (the “Contractor”). The District and the Contractor are referred to
herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”

RECITALS 4‘ B

WHEREAS, the District was organized pursuan and m accordance with the provisions
of §§ 32-1-101, et seq., C.R.S. for the purpose o construot;pg, financing, operating and
maintaining certain public facilities and improvements for itself, its tagpayers, residents and users;
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(d}(I), C.R.S., the District 1s~qmpowered to enter
into contracts and agreements affectihg the affairs of the Dlsinct and -

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1- 1001(})(1)_ C.R.8., the District is empowered to appoint,
hire and retain agents, employees, engingers and attorneys; and

WHEREAS, the District desires to ehgage thie Contractor to perform certain services as are
needed by the District to serve the property withih and without its boundaries; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor has represented: that it has the professional experience, skill
and resources to petform the services, as set forth herein,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and stipulations set forth
herein, the receipt and sufﬁclency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as
follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE 'OF:SERVICES. The Contractor shall perform the services described in
Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Services”):

(a)  in a competent, conscientious and professional manner using the degree of
skill and knowledge customarily employed by other professionals performing similar services in
the area of the District;

(b)  within the time period and pursuant to the Scope of Services specified in
said Exhibit A:

(c) in such a manner as to minimize any annoyance, interference or disruption



to the residents, tenants, occupants and invitees within the District; and

(d) in compliance with all applicable federal, state, county and local or
municipal body or agency statutes, ordinances and regulations, including, without limitation, any
licensing, bonding, and permit requirements, and any such laws relating to storage, use or disposal
of hazardous wastes, substances or materials.

In the event of any conflict between terms set forth in the body of this Agreement and terms
set forth in Exhibit A. the terms in the body of this Agreement shall govern. Contractor shall have
no right or authority, express or implied, to take any action, expend any sum, incur any obligation,
or otherwise obligate the District in any manner whatsoever, except to the extent specifically
provided in this Agreement.

2. TERM/RENEWAL. This Agreement.shall be effective as of the date hereof and
shall terminate on the earlier to occur of: (i) términation pursuant to Section 18 hereof: (ii)
completion of the Services; or (iii) December31,.2021. Notwithstanding the foregoing, unless
terminated pursuant to (i) or (ii) above, or uniess the District determines not to appropriate funds
for this Agreement for the next succeeding year, this Agreefhent shall automatically renew on
January 1% of each succeeding year for an additional ptie (13 year term.

3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. The District may, in writing, request the Contractor to
provide additional services not set forth in Exhibit A. The terms and conditions of the provision
of such additional services shall be subject to the mutual agreement of the Contractor and the
District pursuant to a wiitten sérvice/work order executed by an authorized representative of the
District and the Contractor. Authorization to proceed with additional services shall not be given
unless the District has appropriated funds sufficient to cover the additional compensable amount.
To the extent additional services are provided pursuant to this Section 3, the terms and conditions
of this Agreement relating to Ser{ices shiall also apply to any additional services rendered.

4, REPAIRS/CLAIMS. The Contractor shall notify the District immediately of any
and all damage caused by the Contractor to District property and that of third parties. The
Contractor will, as soon as reasonably practicable, repair or, at the District’s option, reimburse the
District for the repair of any damage to property caused by the Contractor or its employees, agents
or equipment. In addition, the Contractor shall promptly notify the District of all potential claims
of which it becomes aware. The Contractor further agrees to take all reasonable steps to preserve
all physical evidence and information which may be relevant to the circumstances surrounding a
potential claim, while maintaining public safety, and to grant to the District the opportunity to
review and inspect such evidence, including the scene of any damage or accidents. To the extent
the District has authorized Contractor herein, Contractor shall be responsible for initiating,
maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the Services
and shall provide all reasonable protection to prevent damage or injury to persons and property,
including any material and equipment related to the Services, whether in storage on or off site,
under the care, custody, or control of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors.



5. GENERAL PERFORMANCE STANDARDS.

(8  The Contractor has by careful examination ascertained: (i) the nature and
location of the Services; (ii) the configuration of the ground on which the Services are to be
performed; (iii) the character, quality, and quantity of the labor, materials, equipment and facilities
necessary to complete the Services; (iv) the general and local conditions pertaining to the Services;
and (v) all other matters which in any way may affect the performance of the Services by the
Contractor. Contractor enters into this Agreement solely because of the results of such
examination and not because of any representations pertaining to the Services or the provision
thereof made to it by the District or any agent of the District and not contained in this Agreement.
The Contractor represents that it has or shall acquire the capatity-4nd the professional experience
and skill to perform the Services and that the Services shall be performed in accordance with the
standards of care, skill and diligence provided by comgietent professionals who perform services
of a similar nature to those specified in this Agreement: N

(b)  The Services of the Contractor shall be undertaken and completed to assure
their expeditious completion in light of the purposes of this Agreement, If performance of the
Services by the Contractor is delayed due to factors beyond the Contractor’s reasonable control,
or if conditions of the scope or type of services are expected to change, Contractor shall give timely
notice to the District of such a delay or change and receive an equitable adjustment of time and/or
compensation, as negotiated betweenthe Parties.

(c) The Services prowded under this Agreement shall be adequate and
sufficient for the intended purposes and shall be completed in a good and workmanlike manner.

(d)  The Contractor declares that if has complied with all Federal, State and local
laws, rules, regulations, ordinances and/or similar directives regarding business permits,
certificates and licenses that are required to provide the Services under this Agreement.

(¢) Theresponsibilities and obligations of the Contractor under this Agreement
shall not be relieved or affected in any respect by the presence of any agent, consultant, sub-
consultant or employee of the District. Review, acceptance or approval by the District of the
Services performed or any documents prepared by the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor
of any responsibility for deficiencies, omissions or errors in said Services or documents, nor shall
it shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of
action arising out of the performance of this Agreement.

® In the event the Contractor’s performance of any duties or responsibilities
necessary to carry out the Services are conditioned upon the District’s prior performance of any
customary duty or obligation of the District, whether imposed by law or contract, then the
compensation to which Contractor is entitled pursuant to this Agreement, shall not be reduced,
delayed, or otherwise effected as a result of Contractor failing to perform any applicable duty or
responsibility associated with the Services where such failure is due to the District’s failure to
perform any such precedent duty or obligation. Any reduction, delay or withholding of
compensation by the District and due to Contractor pursuant to this subsection 5(f) shall constitute
a default by the District under this Agreement.



6. MONTHLY STATUS REPORT. The Contractor shall report to the District, at the
District’s request, at the Districts monthly meeting (if any), a narrative and status report describing
work in progress and results achieved during the reporting period, including a description of the
Services performed during the invoice period and the Services anticipated to be performed during
the ensuing invoice period (“Monthly Report™).

7. COMPENSATION AND INVOICES.

(@  Compensation. Compensation for the=Services provided under this
Agreement shall be in accordance with the compensation sch’edﬁl% attached hereto as Exhibit B.
The Contractor shall be responsible for all expenses it inéurs in performance of this Agreement
and shall not be entitled to any reimbursement or co:ppemgatign-qxcept as provided in Exhibit B
of this Agreement, unless said reimbursement or compensatibn is approved in writing by the
District in advance of incurring such expenses. Any direct reimbursable costs for materials will be
reimbursable at the Contractor’s actual cost, provided that the Contractor shall notify the District
of the estimated amount of such reimbursable costs (or any material adjustments thereto
subsequently identified) prior to commencing the requested services. '

(b) Invoices. Invoices for the Services shall be submitted monthly at the
deadline established by the Board for authorized payment during the term of the Agreement and
shall contain the following information:

i An itemized statement of the Services performed,

ii. Any other reasonable information reasonably required by the
District to process payment of the invoice, including project and/or cost codes as provided in any
applicable written service/work order.

The District shall be charged only for the services rendered per Exhibit A and direct costs
incurred for.the performance of the Services. Invoices received by the District after their deadline
each month shall be processed no later than the following month,

8. TIME FOR PAYMENT. Payment for the Services shall be made by the District
within thirty (30) days. of receipt of: (i) a timely, satisfactory and detailed invoice; and (ii) if
applicable, a satisfactory and detailed Monthly Report, for that portion of the Services performed
and not previously billed. The District may determine to waive or extend the deadline for filing
the Monthly Report, or may make payment for Services to the Contractor notwithstanding a delay
in filing the Monthly Report, upon reasonable request of the Contractor, if it is in the best interest
of the District to do so. In the event a Board meeting is not scheduled in time to review payment
of an invoice, the District hereby authorizes payment for Services, subject to the appropriation and
budget requirements under Section 27 hereof, without the need for additional Board approval, so
long as any payment required to be made does not exceed the amounts appropriated for such
Services as set forth in the District’s approved budget. Such payment shall require review and
approval of each Monthly Report and invoice by the President and one other officer of the District,
subject to ratification at the next succeeding special or regular Board meeting.




9. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. The Contractor is an independent contractor
and nothing herein shall constitute or designate the Contractor or any of its employees or agents
as employees or agents of the District. The Contractor shall have full power and authority to select
the means, manner and method of performing its duties under this Agreement, without detailed
control or direction from the District, and shall be responsible for supervising its own employees
or subcontractors. The District is concerned only with the results to be obtained. The District shall
not be obligated to secure, and shall not provide, any insurance coverage or employment benefits
of any kind or type to or for the Contractor or its employees, sub-consultants, contractors, agents,
or representatives, including coverage or benefits related but not limited to: local, state or federal
income or other tax contributions, insurance contributions (e.g. FICA taxes), workers’
compensation, disability, injury, health or life insurance, professional liability insurance, errors
and omissions insurance, vacation or sick-time benefits, retirement account contributions, or any
other form of taxes, benefits or insurance. The Contractor shall be responsible for its safety, the
safety of its employees, the public and the work sité in peneral and shall comply with all applicable
provisions of local, state and federal laws, regulations and orders affecting safety and health,
including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (OSH Act). All
personnel furnished by the Contractor will not for atiy purpose’be considered employees or agents
of the District. Contractor will comply with all employment laws relative to any employees of
Contractor, including but not limited to Wage and Hour.laws, Worker Compensation Laws,

S . O] 1

Immigration Laws and OSHA-type laws. The Contraétor s not entitled to worker’s

10. EQUAL *OPPORTUNITY: EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY. This Agreement is
subject to all applicable laws and executive orders relating to equal opportunity and non-
discrimination in employment and the Coritractor represents and warrants that it will not
discriniinate in its employment practices in violation of any such applicable law or executive order.
The Contractor hereby states that it does not knowingly employ or contract with illegal aliens and
that the Contractor has participated in or has attempted to participate in the E-Verify Program or
Department Program (formerly known as the Basic Pilot Program) (as defined in §8- 17.5-101,
C.R.8.) in order to verify that it does not employ any illegal aliens. The Contractor affirmatively
makes the follow declarations:

(®  The Contractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien
who will perform work under the public contract for services contemplated herein and will
participate in the E-Verify Program or Department Program (as defined in §8-17.5-101, C.R.S.) in
order to confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment
to perform work under the public contract for services contemplated herein.

() The Contractor shall not knowingly enter into a contract with a
subcontractor that fails to certify to the Contractor that the subcontractor shall not knowingly
employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform the services contemplated herein.



(©)  The Contractor has confirmed the employment eligibility of all employees
who are newly hired for employment to perform work under the public contract for services
through participation in either the E-Verify Program or the Department Program.

(d)  The Contractor is prohibited from using either the BE-Verify Program or the
Department Program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while
this Agreement is being performed.

(&)  Ifthe Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing
the services under this Agreement knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, the
Contractor shall be required to: y 7

s
i Notify the subcontractor<ind.the District within three (3) days that
the Contractor has actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with an
illegal alien. )

i, Terminate the sibcontract with the subcontrattor if within three (3)
days of receiving the notice required above the subcontractor does not stop employing or
contracting with the illegal alien; except that the Contractor shatl not terminate the contract with
the subcontractor if during such three (3) days the subcontractor provides information to establish
that the subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal alien.

(f  The Contractor shall comply with.any reasonable request by the Department
of Labor and Employment made in the course of an_investigation that such Department is
undertaking pursuant to the authority established in §8-17.5-102, C.R.S.

(g)  Ifthe Contractor violates a provision of the Agreement pursuant to §8-17.5-
102, C.R.S,, the District may terminate the Agreement. If the Agreement is so terminated, the
Contractor shall be liable for actual and consequential damages to the District,

11. CONTRAGTOR'S INSURANCE.

(8)  The Contractor shall acquire and maintain, at its sole cost and expense,
during the entire term of this Agreement, insurance coverage in the minimum amounts set forth in
Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. A waiver of subrogation and
rights of recovery against the District, its directors, officers, employees and agents are required for
each coverage provided: The Commercial General Liability and Comprehensive Automobile
Liability Insurance policies will be endorsed to name the District and its respective managers,
members, officers, directors, partners and employees, as additional insured, All coverage provided
pursuant to this Agreement shall be written as primary policies, not contributing with and not
supplemental to any coverage that the District may carry, and any insurance maintained by the
District shall be considered excess. The District shall have the right to verify or confirm, at any
time, all coverage, information or representations contained herein.

(b)  The Contractor’s failure to purchase the required insurance shall not serve
to release it from any obligations contained herein; nor shall the purchase of the required insurance



serve to limit the Contractor’s liability under any provision herein. The Contractor shall be
responsible for the payment of any deductibles on issued policies.

12. CONFIDENTIALITY AND CONFLICTS,

(@)  Confidentiality. During the performance of this Agreement, if the
Contractor is notified that certain information is to be considered confidential, the Contractor, on
behalf of its employees, agrees to enter into a commercially reasonable confidentiality agreement.
Any information deemed confidential by the District and given to the Contractor by the District,
or developed by the Contractor as a result of the performance-of a particular task, shall remain
confidential. In addition, the Contractor shall hold in stri¢t confidence, and shall not use in
competition, any information which the Contractor beconfes aware of under or by virtue of this
Agreement which the District deems confidential, of whmh the District has agreed to hold
confidential, or which, if revealed to a third party, might reasonahly ‘be construed to be contrary to
the best interests of the District, unless the Contractor obtains M‘QMd’s prior written consent

to the contrary.

(b) Conflicts. Prior to the execution of, and during the t{erformance of this
Agreement and prior to the execution of future agreements with the District, the Contractor agrees
to notify the owner of conflicts thatf{mpact the Services to the District.

13.  OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. All documents produced by or on behalf of the
Contractor prepared pursuant to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all maps, plans,
drawings, specifications, reports, electronic files and other documents, in whatever form, shall
remain the property of the District under all circumstances, upon payment to the Contractor of the
invoices representing the work by which such materials were produced. The Contractor shall
maintain electronic and reproducible copies on file of any such instruments of service involved in
the Services throughout the duration of the Term of this Agreement, and shall make them available
for the District’s use and shall provide such copies to the District at no cost upon the District’s
request during the Term of this Agreement.

14, LIENS AND ENCUMBRANCES. The Contractor shall not have any right or
interest in any District assets, nor any claim or lien with respect thereto, arising out of this
Agreement or the performance of the services contemplated herein. The Contractor, for itself,
hereby waives and releases any and all statutory or common law mechanic’s, materialmen’s or
other such lien claims, or rights to place a lien upon the District’s property or any improvements
thereon in connection with any Services performed under or in connection with this Agreement,
and the Contractor shall cause all permitted subcontractors, suppliers, materialmen, and others
claiming by, through or under the Contractor to execute similar waivers prior to commencing any
work or providing any materials in connection with the Services. The Contractor further agrees to
execute an affidavit respecting the payment and lien releases of all subcontractors, suppliers and
materialmen, and release of lien respecting the Services at such time or times and in such form as
may be reasonably requested by the District. The Contractor will provide indemnification against
all such liens for labor performed, materials supplied or used by the Contractor and/or any other
person working on behalf of Contractor in connection with the Services undertaken by the
Contractor, in accordance with Section 15(b) below.




15. INDEMNIFICATION.

(@  The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the District and
each ofits directors, officers, contractors, employees, agents and consultants, from and against any
and all claims, demands, losses, liabilities, actions, lawsuits, damages, and expenses, including
reasonable legal expenses and attorneys’ fees, arising directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, out
of the errors or omissions, negligence, willful misconduct, or any criminal or tortious act or
omission of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors, officers, agents or employees, in
connection with this Agreement and/or the Contractor’s performance of the Services or work
pursuant to this Agreement. The Contractor is not obligated to indemnify the District for the
District’s own negligence.

(b)  The Contractor will at all times indemnify, defend and hold the District and
its directors, officers, managers, agents and employees harmless against any liability for claims
and liens for labor performed or materials usel or'fumished in the performance of Contractor’s
Services, including any costs and expenses incurred in the defense of such claims and liens,
reasonable attorneys’ fees and any damages to the District résulting from such claims or liens.
After written demand by the District, the Contractorwill itimediately cause the effect of any suit
or lien to be removed from the District’s property. In‘the event the Contractor fails to do so, the
District is authorized to use whatever means in its discretion it may deem appropriate to cause said
lien or suit to be removed or dismissed, and the costs thereof, together with reasonable attorneys’
fees, will be immediately due and payable by the Contractor or niay, at the District’s option, be
offset against any sums due and payable to Contractor pursuant to this Agreement. In the event a
suit on such claim or lien is brought the Contractor will, at the option of the District, defend said
suit at its own cost and expense, with counsel reasonably satisfactory to the District and will pay
and satisfy any such claim, lien, orjudgment as may be established by the decision of the Court in
such suit. The Contractor may hﬁgate any such lien or suit, provided the Contractor causes the
effect thereof to be removed promptly in advance from the District’s property.

(¢)  This indemnity coverage shall also cover the District’s defense costs in the
event that the District, in its sole discretion, elects to provide its own defense, The District retains
the right to disapprove counsel, if any, selected by the Contractor to fulfill the foregoing defense
indemnity obligation, which right of disapproval shall not be unreasonably exercised. Insurance
coverage requirements specified herein shall in no way lessen or limit the liability of the Contractor
under the terms of this indemnification obligation. The Contractor shall obtain, at its own expense,
any additional insurance that it deems necessary for the District’s protection in the performance of
this Agreement. This defense and indemnification obligation shall survive the expiration or
termination of this Agreement.

(d  To the maximum extent permitted by law, The District shall indemnify,
defend and hold harmless the Contractor from and against any and all claims, demands, losses,
liabilities, actions, lawsuits, damages, and expenses, including reasonable legal expenses and
attorneys’ fees, arising directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, out of the errors or omissions,
negligence, willful misconduct, or any criminal or tortious act or omission of the District or any
of its directors, officers, managers, agents and employees in connection with this Agreement. This



defense and indemnification obligation shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement.

16.  ASSIGNMENT. The Contractor shall not assign this Agreement or parts thereof,
or its respective duties, without the express written consent of the District, which consent shall not
be unreasonably withheld. Any attempted assignment, delegation or subcontracting of this
Agreement in whole or in part with respect to which the District has not consented, in writing,
shall be null and void and of no effect whatsoever.

17. SUB-CONTRACTORS. The Contractor is solely and fully responsible to the
District for the performance of all Services under this Agreement, whether performed by the
Contractor or a subcontractor engaged by the Contractor. The Gontractor shall not subcontract any
Services without prior written approval by the District. The Contractor agrees that each and every
agreement of the Contractor with any subcontractor to perform Services under this Agreement
shall contain an indemnification provision identical to the one contained herein holding the District
harmless for the acts of the subcontractor. The Contractor further agrees that any such subcontract
shall be terminable for cause or convenience and that, unless directed otherwise by the District,
the Contractor shall immediately terminate all such subcontracts immediately tpon termination of
this Agreement. Prior to commencing any Services, a subcontractor shall provide evidence of
insurance coverage to the District. The Contractor further agrees that all such subcontracts shall
provide that they may be terminated unmedlately without further cost upon termination of this
Agreement. Neither the District’s approval “of any subcontractors, suppliers or materialmen, nor
the failure of performance thereof by such parties, will relieve, release or affect in any manner any
of the Contractor’s duties, liabilities or obligations under this Agreement, and the Contractor will
at all times be and remain fully liable. The Contractor agrees that each of its employees, and any
subcontractors, suppliers and materialmen will be properly qualified and will use reasonable care
in the performance of their duties.

18.  TERMINATION. In addition to the termination prowsmns contained in Paragraph
2, above, this Agreement may be terminated for cause or for convenience by the Contractor upon
delivery of thirty (30) days prior written notice to the District and by the District by giving the
Contractor thirty (30) days prior written notice. Such notice shall not be required for automatic
expiration under Section 2 hereof; If this Agreement is terminated, the Contractor shall be paid for
all the Services. gatisfactorily performed prior to the designated termination date, including
reimbursable expenses due. Said payment shall be made in the normal course of business. Should
either Party to this Agreement be declared bankrupt, make a general assignment for the benefit of
creditors or commit a substantial and material breach of this Agreement in the view of the other
Party, said other Party shall be excused from rendering or accepting any further performance under
this Agreement. In the event of termination by either Party hereto, the Contractor shall cooperate
with the District to ensure a timely and efficient transition of all work and work product to the
District or its designees. All time, fees and costs associated with such transition shall not be billed
by the Contractor to the District.

19.  DEFAULT. If either Party fails to perform in accordance with the terms, covenants
and conditions of this Agreement, or is otherwise in default of any of the terms of this Agreement,
the non-defaulting party shall deliver written notice to the defaulting party of the default, at the



address specified in Section 20 below, and the defaulting party will have fifteen (15) days from
and after receipt of the notice to cure the default. If the default is not of a type which can be cured
within such fifteen (15)-day period and the defaulting party gives written notice to the non-
defaulting party within such fifteen (15)-day period that it is actively and diligently pursuing a
cure, the defaulting party will have a reasonable period of time given the nature of the default
following the end of the fifteen (15)-day period to cure the default, provided that the defaulting
party is at all times within the additional time period actively and diligently pursuing the cure, If
any default under this Agreement is not cured as described above, the non-defaulting party will, in
additional to any other legal or equitable remedy, have the right to terminate this Agreement and
enforce the defaulting party’s obligations pursuant to this Agreement by an action for injunction
or specific performance.

20. NOTICES. Any notice or communication required under this Agreement must be
in writing, and may be given personally, sent via nationally recognized overnight carrier service,
or by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested. If given by registered or certified mail,
the same will be deemed to have been given and received on the first to occur of: (i) actual receipt
by any of the addressees designated below as the party to whom notices are to be sent, or (ii) three
days after a registered or certified letter containing such notice, properly addressed, with postage
prepaid, is deposited in the United States mail. If personally delivered or sent via nationally
recognized overnight carrier service, a notice will be deemed to have been given and received on
the first to occur of (i) one business day after being deposited with a nationally recognized
overnight air courier service or (ii) delivery to the party to whom it is addressed. Any party hereto
may at any time, by giving written notice to the other party hereto as provided herein designate
additional persons to whom notices or communications will be given, and designate any other
address in substitution of the address to which such notice or communication will be given. Such
notices or communications will be given to the parties at their addresses set forth below:

If intended for Seller. to: If intended for Contractor., to:
WSDM, LLC,

d/b/a Walker Schooler District Managers
614 N. Tejon Street

Colorado Springs, CO 80903

with a copv to: Atin: Kevin Walker

Phone; (719) 447-1777
Email; kevin.w(@wsdistricts.co

21.  AUDITS. The District shall have the right to audit, with reasonable notice, any of
the Contractor’s books and records which may be necessary to substantiate any invoices and
payments under this Agreement (including, but not limited to, receipts, time sheets, payroll and
personnel records) and the Contractor agrees to maintain adequate books and records for such
purposes during the term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years thereafter and to
make the same available to the District at all reasonable times and for so long thereafter as there
may remain any unresolved question or dispute regarding any item pertaining thereto.



22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement
between the Parties hereto relating to the Services, and sets forth the rights, duties, and obligations
of each to the other as of this date. Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations
not expressly set forth in this Agreement are of no force and effect. This Agreement may not be
modified except by a writing executed by both the Contractor and the District.

23. BINDING AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall inure to and be binding on the
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties hereto.

24, 'NO WAIVER. No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be
deemed to constitute a waiver of any other of the provisions of this Agreement, nor shall such
waiver constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly provided herein, nor shall the
waiver of any default be deemed a waiver of any subsequent default.

25. GOVERNING LAW/DISPUTES: This Agreement and all claims or controversies
arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with
the law of the State of Colorado, without regard to_conflict of law principles that would result in
the application of any law other than the law of the State of Colorado, Venue for all actions arising
from this Agreement shall be in the District Court'in and for the county in which the District is
located. The Parties expressly and irrevocably waive any objections or rights which may affect
venue of any such action, including, but not limited to, forum non-convenient or otherwise, At the
District’s request, the Contractor shall carry on its duties and obligations under this Agreement
during any legal proceedings and the District shall continue to pay for the Services performed
under this Agreement until and unless this Agreement is otherwise terminated. If it becomes
necessary for either party to enfarce the provisions of this Agreement or to obtain redress for the
breach or violation of any of its provisions, whether by litigation, arbitration or other proceedings,
the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party all costs and expenses
associated with such procegdings, including reasonable attorney’s fees. For purposes of this
Agreement, “prevailing party” shall mean the party in whose favor a judgment, decree, or final
order is rendered, either by an arbitrator or the coutt, after appeal, if any. In the event both Parties
prevail on one or more claims, the prevailing party shall mean the net winner of a dispute, taking
into account the claims pursued, the claims on which the pursuing party was successful, the amount
of money sought, the amount of money awarded, and offsets or counterclaims pursued
(successfully or unsuccessfully) by the other Party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a written
offer of compromise made by either Party is not accepted by the other Party within thirty (30) days
after receipt and the Party not accepting such offer fails to obtain a more favorable judgment, the
non-accepting Party shall not be entitled to recover its costs of suit and reasonable attorney’s fees
and costs (even if it is the prevailing party) and shall be obligated to pay the costs of suit and
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs incurred by the offering Party. At the District’s request, the
Contractor will consent to being joined in litigation between the District and third parties, but such
consent shall not be construed as an admission of fault or liability. The Contractor shall not be
responsible for delays in the performance of the Services caused by factors beyond its reasonable
control including delays caused by Act of God, accidents, failure of any governmental or other
regulatory authority to act in a timely manner or failure of the District to furnish timely information
or to approve or disapprove of Contractor’s Services in a timely manner.




26. GOOD FAITH OF PARTIES. In the performance of this Agreement, or in
considering any requested approval, acceptance, or extension of time, the Parties agree that each
will act in good faith and will not act unreasonably, arbitrarily, capriciously, or unreasonably
withhold, condition, or delay any approval, acceptance, or extension of time required or requested
pursuant to this Agreement.

27.  SUBJECT TO ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND BUDGET. The District does
not intend hereby to create a multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation
whatsoever. The performance of those obligations of the District pursuant to this Agreement
requiring budgeting and appropriation of funds are subject to annual budgeting and appropriations.
The Contractor expressly understands and agrees that th€ District’s obligations under this
Agreement shall extend only to monies appropriated for thie'purposes of this Agreement by the
Board and shall not constitute a mandatory charge, requirement. or liability in any ensuing fiscal
year beyond the then-current fiscal year. No provision of this Agreement shall be construed or
interpreted as a delegation of governmental powers by the District, or #s creating & multiple- fiscal
year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever of thé District or statutory debt
limitation, including, without Limitation, Article X, Section 20 or Arfic]é XI, Section 6 of the
Constitution of the State of Colorado. No provision of this Agréement shall bg ¢onstrued to pledge
or to create a lien on any class or source of District funds. The District’s obligations under this
Agreement exist subject to annual budgeting and appropriations, and shall remdin subject to the
same for the entire term of this Agreement.

28.  GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed
to waive, limit, or otherwise modify, in whole or in part, any governmental immunity that may be
available by law to the District, its respective officials, employees, contractors, or agents, or any
other person acting on behalf of the District and, in particular, governmental immunity afforded or
available to the District pursuant to the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, §§ 24-10-101, et
seq., C.R.S.

©'29. NEGOTIATED PROVISIONS. This Agreement shall not be construed more
strictly against one Party than against the other merely by virtue of the fact that it may have been
prepared by counsel for one of the Parties, it being acknowledged that each Party has contributed
substantially and materially to the preparation of this Agreement.

30. SEVERABILITY. If any portion of this Agreement is declared by any court of
competent jurisdiction to be void or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the validity of
any remaining portion of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect. In addition,
in lieu of such void or unenforceable provision, there shall automatically be added as part of this
Agreement a provision similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision so that
the resulting reformed provision is legal, valid and enforceable.

31. NOTHIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. It is expressly understood and agreed that
enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and all rights of action relating to such
enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the Parties and nothing contained in this Agreement shall
give or allow any such claim or right of action by any other third party on such Agreement. It is
the express intention of the Parties that any person other than Parties receiving services or benefits




under this Agreement shall be deemed to be an incidental beneficiary only.

32. OPEN RECORDS. The Parties understand that all material provided or produced
under this Agreement may be subject to the Colorado Open Records Act, §§ 24-72-202, et seq.,
CR.S.

33.  TAX EXEMPT STATUS. The District is exempt from Colorado State sales and
use taxes. Accordingly, taxes from which the District is exempt shall not be included in any
invoices submitted to the District. The District shall, upon request, furnish Contractor with a copy
of its certificate of tax exemption. Contractor and subcontractors shall apply to the Colorado
Department of Revenue, Sales Tax Division, for an Exentptioti Certificate and purchase the
materials tax free. Pursuant to § 39-26-1 14(1)(a)}(XIX)(A); C.:K’S., Contractor and subcontractors
shall be liable for exempt taxes paid due to failure to apply: forExemption Certificates or for failure
to use said certificate. w

34.  COUNTERPART EXECUTION. This Agreement may be executed in several
counterparts, each of which may be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute
one and the same instrument. Executed copies hergof may be delivered by facsimile or email of a
PDF document, and, upon receipt, shall be deemed originals and binding upon the signatories
hereto, and shall have the full force and effect of the original for all purposes, including the rules
of evidence applicable to court proceedings. '

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the date first
above written. By the signature of its representative below, each Party affirms that it has taken all

necessary action to authorize said representative to execute this Agreement.
“DISTRICT” “CONTRACTOR”

CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN WSDM, LLC,

DISTRICT, : a Colorado limited liability company

a quasi-municipal corporation and political d/b/a Walker Schooler District Managers
subdivision of the State of Colorado

By: —— - By: - N

Name: Name: - -
Officer of the District Title: - R

ATTEST:

By: .

Name: - -




EXHIBIT A
Scope of Services

Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District



EXHIBIT B
Proposed Fee Arrangement

GENERAL TERMS

®
(b)

©
(d)
)

Billing will be delivered by the 5™ of the first month of the quarter

Hourly billing (see attached billing rates) will be documented and accompany the
monthly invoice

Payable within 30 days of receipt of billing .- ;

Subject to a late fee of 1% per month if later thin'30 days

Other costs (bank fees, checks, etc.) if needéd will be billed at cost

BILLING RATE SCHEDULE AND ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES



EXHIBIT C
Insurance Requirements

NOTE: All insurance required and provided hereunder shall also comply with the provisions of
Section 11 of the Agreement.

il Standard Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance covering all
employees of Contractor involved with the performance of the Services, with policy amounts and
coverage in compliance with the laws of the jurisdiction in which the Services will be performed.

%

2. Commercial Genersl Lisbility Insurance wifh gafnimum limits of Lisbility of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage lability; $2,000,000
designated location, general aggregate. Such insuragte will, include coverage for contractual
liability, personal injury and broad form property damage, and shall include all major divisions of
coverage and be on a comprehensive basis including, but not limited,to;

‘ ’
premises operations; .,
personal injury liability without employment exclusion;
blanket contractual;
broad form property damages, inicluding completed operations;
medical payments;
products and completed operations;
independent consultant’s coverage; and :
coverage inclusive of construction means, methods, techniques, sequences,
and procedures, employed in the capacity of a construction consultant.

@R the oo op

This policy must include coverage extensions to cover the indemnification obligations
contained in this Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of bodily injury or
property damage.

3. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned
and hired automobiles used in connection with the performance of the Services, with limits of
liability of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and property damage. This
policy must include coverage extensions to cover the indemnification obligations contained
in this Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of bodily injury or property damage.

4, If applicable: Contractor shall secure and maintain a third-party fidelity bond in
favor of the District covering the Contractor and its employees and agents who may provide or be
responsible for the provision of Services where such activities contemplate the responsibility for
money or property of the District. Such bond shall protect the District against any fraudulent or
dishonest act which may result in the loss of money, securities, or other property belonging to or
in the possession of the District. Said bond shall be in an amount as determined by the District,

from a surety acceptable to the District.

5. Any other insurance commonly used by contractors for services of the type to be
performed pursuant to this Agreement.






Man{iqen'ief'n Agr nent Renewal The Warren Management
. — Group, Inc. aamc
-m—.maﬂ.

This Agreement Is made by and between The Warren Management Group, Inc (hereafter
referred to as "WMG"), and The Cathedral Pine Metropolitan District, (hereafier referred to as the "District”). WMG and the District
are hereafter referred fo as "Party” and collectively refarred to as *Parties.” '

RECITALS

1. The District, having responsibilities of ownership of property within the Cathedral Pines community and the duty to maintain such
property, hereby desires to continue its engagement with WMG as its managing agent for certain services; and

2, WMG desires to accept this continued engagement upon the terms and conditiona set forth in this Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, for and In considaration of the mutual promises contained In this Agreement and the performances to be made by
the Partles, the receipt and sufficlency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

g8g

1.1 nl .
The Board has the requisite autharity to act on behalf of the District In all instances under this Agreement. WMG will communicate to
the District through the President of the Board. WMG personnel shall be under no obligation to follow directives from other Board

members without confirmation from the President.
1.2

Section 2. Standards of Engagement

WMG warrants that it has the personnel, knowledge, fraining, expertise, faclllties and equipment for the professional management of
the common area property owned by the District. During the term of this Agreement, WMG will utiilzs Its profassional dliigence to
operate and maintain the Property according to the terms of this Agreement and according to such reasonabie written standarda
established by the Board and provided to WMG.

Section 3: Documentation

The District shall fumnish afl necessary documentation naceesary for WMG to be capable of performing its dulies under this Agreement,
including maintenance records, warranty records (If any), contractor Information of instaliers, etc.

Section 4: Services Provided by WMG during the Term of This Agresment

4.1 Property Maintenance:
A. One of the functions of the District Is to maintain the Property owned by the District In a first-class condttion for the benefit of
the all Owners and residents of Cathedral Pines. These responsibilities Include;

1. All grounds maintenance owned by the Metro District (e.9 the landscape medians and roundabouts throughout the
community, landscape around all Cathedral Pines monumeants)
2. Maintenance to include gress mowing, mulching, native arsa mowing, weed control, Infgetion sysiem
management, various shrubs and trees, efc.
b. Spring refresh of all mulch beds, flower piantings, removal of dead plant material & replacement as authorized
c. Fall maintenance of all grounds, Including trimming of shrubs & trees and proper winterization of the irrigation

system.
2. Oversight of the well system

3. Trall maintenance and grading

The Warren Management
4. Pond maintenance, Inciuding annual spring fish restocking Gr oUP Inc ﬁ
To the extent allowad by Colorado Law, this Management Agreemant shall not | - ' - AAMC
without permission of WMG’s CEO. At demimios Huspmess covwy [




Management of lodge maintenance, both interior and exterior

Management upkeep of community signage as needed (streets, trails, lodge, malibox, etc.)
Management of hollday décor set up & removal, as directed by the Board.

B. WMG shall negotiate bids and contracts for such maintenance gervices from suitable contractors that have the experiise to
service the needs of the District through detalled Requests for Proposals. WMG may seek detalis from the Board ragarding
speclfic expactations regarding a particular service so that the contractor knows up front the expectations of the clilent. WMG
underslands that Cathedral Pines desires to be a first-class, luxury home community, and it s WMG's intention to ensure that
the sarvices of its property matches the expectations of the residents through the management of the District Board, WMG
shall not enter into contracta on behalf of the District; all contracts shall be subject to Board approval and execution.

5

8. Snow removal management throughout the community on sireets and lodge parking lots.
7

8

C. WMG shall exercise reasonable care in reviewing the activities of the confractor(s) for compllance with the terms of the
Agreement, reporting accordingly to the Board of Directors.

D. Expenses not specifically approved by the annual budget shall be authorized In accordance with a procedural policy
established by the Board, unless such repairs are of an emergency hature, which require timely action by WMG to provide for
the safety and welfare of the community and/or its residents.

E. WMG shall perform general sie inspections of the common area with sufficient frequency (not less than once a month) and
shall report updates at District Board meetings on afl maintanance activities. WMG shall not be responsible for any “technical®
Inspections of common area elements; the District agrees that it shall rely solely upon the advice of professionals specifically
trained to repair and maintain such slements.

F. WMG also shall report to the residents of the Cathedral Pines community via the community website to promote positive
Interaction/communication with the residents, clarifying the priorities of the District and encouraging Interaction by residents to
identify problems rather than letting them go unmentioned.

42 Communication Between the Parties

Email Communication: WMG asks that emalls sent by Members of the Board be directed as follows:

if the Sender is seeking a responss from the Manager, please show the Manager in the “TO" portion of the email heading.
This will let the Manager know that a response Ie belng sought.

1. If the Sender s including the Manager on the emall in order to keep the Manager In the foop on communication, but
not for the purpose of obtaining a response from the Manager, plesse show the Manager In the “CC" porticn of the
emall heading. The Manager can then spend time reading the email at a later time.

Managers are not expecied to be accessible at all hours of the day and night. Manegers shall be available for
communication with the Board during standsrd business hours (8 a.m. — 5 p.m.) weekdays. All other communications
recelved outsida of standard business hours shall be replied to the following business day, unless of an emsrgency
nature.

2. Managers that share their cell phone number with the Board members do 80 with the professional understanding that:
I. Thelr personal csil phone number will not be shared with anyone else, and
il. Their personal time will be respecied, using their cell phone for communication during business hours only

except to lsave a message.

Employess of WMG shell be Insured by a sufficlent amount of fidelity coverage with & company of WMG's choice In accordance with
any applicable requirements under law. A Cerlificate of Ineurance validating such coverage shall be provided upon request.

Ag

This Agreement shall be effective on January 1, 2020 and extend for a period of one (1) year. This Agreement shall then renew
automatically for a perlod of one (1) year unless otherwige amended, replaced or terminated.
The Warren Management

Group. Inc. asnc €%

To the extant allowed by Colorado law, this Management Agreement shall not ba lhl“l'l_d or copied
without permission of WMG’s CEO.




In the event it is alleged or charged that an act by one of the parties ig in violation of any of the requirements or any constitutional
provision, statute, ordinance, law or regulation of any governmental body or public authority or official thareof having or claiming to have
jurisdiction thereof, and the other Parly, in its sole and absolute discretion, considers that the action or position of the party alleged o
be in violation may result in damage or liabillty to the non-violating Party, said Party shall have the right to immeciately cancet this
Agreement by written notice to the other Party and sald termination shall not terminate any liabiitly or obligation 1o the other Party which
would be due at the time of termination, Including payment for services rendered or other monetary amounts due.

BothParﬂesherabyagreemmakeanIntenﬂonalelforttoresolve(andglveopporlunitytoreaolve)anylssuemtmayarllaprlorto

in addition, either Party may elect to terminate thig Agreement at the end of the contract term as defined In Section 6
upon providing a written Notice oflntanthTamﬂnataatleastmirty {30) days prior to the end of the term to the other Parly. Both
Parties again agree that fallure to provide thirty days written notice will not waive payment of the full management fae for that month,

Because the Board holds full decision-making authority for the District, the District agress to defend, hold harmless and indemnify WMG
against any actions or claims made ageinst WMG arising from acts done or decisions made by WMG in good faith, in compliance with
the terms of this Agreement, with the exercise of the professional standard of care exsrcised by professianal association managemnent
companles and which are not in violation of law while performing services under this Agreement. This includes, without limitation, if
WMG Is named as a part to litigation, arbitration or other proceeding brought by an owner, a contractor, a vendor, or consultant, or any
outside Party by reason of WMG's poaition or its activities hereunder,

Agresment, are a violation of the standard of professional care imposed by this Agreement, are performed in bag faith or constitute a
violation of any law, rule, or ordinance of governmental entities resulting in a monetary lose. Thig includes, without limitation, i the
District s named as & Party to litigation, arbitration or other proceedings brought by an owner, a contractor, a vendor, consultant or any
other third Party by reason of the relationship between WMG and the District.

In consideration of the tasks being delegatad or may be delegated to WMG under this Agresment or any amendment thareto, it Is
hereby acknowledged that:

¢ WMG shall not in any way be consldered an Insurer or guarantor of security within the property nor held Hable for any loss or
damage by reason of fallure to provide nelther adequate security nor the ineffactiveness of security measuras undertaken.

* WMG does not represent or wamant thet fire protection, burglar alarms, access control systems, palrol services, survelllence
equipment, manitoring devices, or other security systems (if present) will prevent loss by fire, smoke, burglary, theft, or that
these systems will in all cases provide the detection or protection for which the system is designed or Intended!.

s WMGQG shall not be held ltable for any environmental conditions, securlty breaches, theft of property by third parties, air quaiity,
moid, mildew, second-hand smoke, water intrusion, plumbing malfunctions, power, outages or power surges, equipment
faliure or construction defects of any kind.

*  WMG Is not obligated to Implement directives or decisions of the Board which are contrary o this Agreement, involve
transactions or services outside WMG's expertise, knowledge or authority, or are conirary to applicable laws or goveming
documents.

This indemnification shall not be desmed exclusive of any other rights to which sither Party may be entitled, and shall continue after the
termination of this Agreement.

9.1 Monthiv Mapagement Fae: For professional services set forth In this agreement, WMG shall recelve compenaation in the
amount of $2,000 per month. Payment Is due within 10 deys of receipt of invoice. Invoices not pald by the due date may Incur a late
fee and interest. WMG reserves the right {o discontinue service should the District's account for services remain unpsid for a period of
60 days. In addition, WMG is entitled to recelve reimbursement of all expenses incurred In coliecting the outstanding balance, Inciuding
attorney’s fees and court costs, if necessary.

8.2 Additional SBervices: Should WMG be requested to provide additional services beyond the .
typical services known to be delegated to WMG, the President will be asked for authorization of . | '@ vg.:;"u:"I m‘m‘mgﬁ

To the extant allowed by Colerado law, this Managament Agreement shall not be sh: e Compey [
without permission of WMG’s CEO.




additional compensation at WMG's desiynated hourly rate for documented time or be given other directives. This authorization may be
given verbally to expadite the services when appropriate, but such authorization shall, in follow up, be confirmed In writing by the
President 2o to avold any dispute of said authorization; email transmission shall suffice for such authorization.

10.1 Office Hours: Itls understood that the offices of WMG shalll be open between the hours of 8 A.M. and 5:30 P.M. Monday through
Thursday and 8 A.M. to 12 Noon on Friday. WMG acknowledges the following designated holidays: New Year's Day, Memoria! Day,
Independence Day, Labor Day, Thenksglving Day & the day thereafter, Christmas Eve (aflemoon), Christmas Day, and New Year's
Eve (aﬂemoolr:). WMG reserves the right to shift holiday dates during the Christmas holiday depending on how ihe hoiiday falls during
the work wesk.

10.2 Avallabliity for Mestings: WMG's manager shall attend regular meslings of the District Board. Such mestings must be held in a
businessllke anvironment on a weekday during business hours, not to extend past 7 p.m.

10.3 Emerzency Contact: WMG shall provide the District with 8 means to reach WMG during non-business hours in case of an
emargency. WMG's telephone system shall offer callers an option for reporting an emergency during non-business hours. Upon
calling WMG's primary telephone number (718-534-0266), selacting Option 2, the caller will be given the opportunily to report an
emergency. Upon placemant of an emergency meesage, the designeted on-call manager shall be contactsd for timely response and
appropriate action.

Any notice required or parmitted to be served hereunder may be served by firsi class mall, alectronic mall with read racelpt, or in person
as follows:

i to WMG: Ifto the District:
The Warren Management Group, Inc. AAMC Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District
Alin: Linda Warmen, President Atin; Cument President

1720 Jet Stream Drive, Suite 200
Colorado Springs, CO 80921
Emall: linda@warmenmgmt.com

Either Party may change the address for notice by giving written notice to the other Parly. Nofice shall be deemed when served
personally upon the other Party, or three calendar days after notice is deposited into the Unlted States mall, postage prepaid, retumn
recelpt requested, sent via E-Malf with read receipt or hand-delivered,

WMG shall tum over all records and Property belonging to the District on or before the effective date of termination of this Agreement,
“Records of the District” shall mean a hard copy of all records, data, and reports. All electronic records that are held In Microsoft
programs such as Word and Excel shall be duplicated and provided to the District for its continued use and record keeping.

F

WMG has no responsibliity for the District's compliance with the requirements of any locel, stats or federal crdinances, laws, rules or
regulations, except as part of its professional duty of care to nolfy the District of noncompliance when WMG fe aware thet the Districxt
Is not in compliance with any such legal requirements and to notify the District of changes in lege! requirements when WMG becomes
aware of such changas.

L PIOY

The District acknowledges that WMG spends a great deal of time and expense to hirs and train employees to provide the District and
other clients the services contemplated in this agreement. The District derives the benefits of WMG's experience and of such hiring

and tralning procedures.

To the extent allowed by Colorado law, this Managemant Agreement shall not be shared or coplaed
without permission of WMG’s CEQ,



The District agrees that during the term or this Agresment and for a period of twenty-four (24) 3

months thereatter, it will not, without the prior written consent of WMG, hire or attempt to hire as The WaﬁeﬂiManameﬂt
an employee or engage as an independsnt contractor o use the services of, in any way _q" oup. Inc. saame 13
whatsoever, whether directly or indirectly, any person who was known to be an employes of WMG e ——— e
during the preceding twelve {12) month period.

In the event that the District knowingly breaches the provisions of this covenant, the District agrees to pay WMG, as liquidated damages
and not as a penalty, an amount equal to six (6) imes the monthly salary paid to the employee by WMG at the time of the breach. This
liquidated damages provision Is recognition by the parties of the difficulty of asceriaining damages in the context of parsonal
employment, training an hiring costs Incurred by WMG and the unique nature of WMG's business.

WMGs right to recover liquidated damages for the breach of this provigion Is without prejudice 1o all other remedies WMG may have
pursuant to this Agreement or law. This hiring restriction survives the termination of this Agresment. The parties further agree that
WMG shall be entitied to recover its attomey’s fees and costs incurred In such sult from the Association.

WMG holds high standards of ethics, Including its spacific professional ethics binding sach community association manager
credsntialed by Community Associations Institute. WMG will not accept any remunaraion or considaration in any manner or form from
any unreleted Party providing goods and services to the District as consideration for or Inducement to WMG for using such Parly’s
goods or retaining their services on behalf of the District. WMG has no known conflicts of interest to diaclose,

WMG has disclosed its relationship to any Party, partnership, corporation or other entity related or affiliated with i, its directors, officers
or employeas.

)

Neither Party may assign this Agreement without the prior approval of the other; fallure to secure prior approval will be Just cause for
termination of this Agreement. However, this Agreemant shall continue In full force and effect upon marger or consolidation of WMG
with another corporation or entity In which those individuals holding a mejority interest In WMG hold a mejortty Interest In such new

entity.

0

This agreement shall be interpreted In accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado. In the event of a iawsuit, the proper venue
shal be In Et Paso County, Colorado.

o o

I j
Ly G \Iﬁ"ilt-’a‘“f-"l

IN WITNESS, the parties have executad this Agresment the day and year written below,

Itted on behalf of WMG:

-}MLJW__ 12-11-19
ByLinda M. Warren Date
Acceptad -orl behaif of the District:
i 2/26/%
By Date
lts President

To the extent allowsd by Colorado law, this Management Agreement shell not be shared or copled
without permission of WMG’s CEO.



Exhibit A
Management Services

@] :
Guids & advise the Board of Directors as declsion makerg
Attend regular District meetinga
Present & written Management Report of maintenance activities
Maintain necessary E-mail communicailon w/Board President
Provide RFP Preparation & Bld Comparison for servicas
Monitor vendor contract renswals
Administer processing of well reading reporting to the State Water District

I 5
Perform routine inspections of common area property

Preparation & follow thru of work orders, as needed

Be the fiaison with contractors to task authorized directives

Provide oversight of all sarvice contracts

Provide oversight of the wel} system

Manitor the maintenance of the trafl

Management of grounds maintenance In landscape medians and roundabouts
Manage the maintenance of the pond(s), providing fish restocking annually
Manage Lodge maintenance both interior and exterior

Manage snow removal needs of the community

Manage the upkeep of community signage

Management of community lighting

Management of holiday decor

Provide aftar-hours "on call” service for emergencies

Sommunication;
Report to the residents of the community via the community websits on priorities of the District
Serve as lialson with residents regarding problems reported by residents

To the extant allowed by Colorado law, this Managament Agreement shall not be shared or copled
without permission of WMG's CEO.






WILLIAM P, ANKELE, IR -: . WBA‘ ZacHARY P. Warrz
JENRIFER GRUSER TANAKA el S - : Treewa K. Haxwes
CLETC. W, i
Cmnc Wamon WHITE BEAR ANKELE Mzl Karaso
RoseRr G. Roarss _ TA NAEA & W_A_I.DR(JI\E| EveM.Ganu
FLATKM. Brcxmoren T ATTORNEYS AT LAW e
Or Covrans: LAURA §, Hirmuce
KRETEN D, BRAR CEnaTOMAER T, MCAICHAKL
SRAN ALLEN
GeoncE RowLey
August 21, 2019

Board of Directors

Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District

¢/o Kevin Walker

Walker Schooler District Managers

614 N Tejon Street

Colorado Springs, Colorado 80903

RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON
Dear Directors:

Wempleasedwconﬁmomengnganentasgmeralcomselﬁothe&thedmlﬁms
Metropolitan District (the “District”).

ThisengagemmthﬁaprovidesﬁetmmsuponwhichWhitheuAnkeleTmah&Wﬂdrm
(“WBA™) will provide legal servicés to the District and is intended to formalize our retention as
general counsel, as required by the applicable Rules of Professional Conduct. This letter sets forth

details of the engagement,

including how we propose to staff the matter, billing arrangements and

certain conflict of interest understandings. Additional information about WBA can be found at

1.

lawyer at WBA. We will also

Personnel. Legal
use paralegals and/or other

and effective in providing you with legal services.

2,

will be based upon time
on the matter. WBA’
hour, and are not

services provided under this engagement may be performed by any
support staff as we believe to be necessary

Fees, Expenses and Retainer. Our fees for services rendered on the District’s behalf
chmgedusingthehouﬂyrateschargedbyeachattomeyorparalegalworking
s legal services are billed on an hourly basis, in increments of one-tenth of an
contingent. Hourly rates for professionals in WBA currently range from $225.00

to $475.00 (attorneys), fiom $135.00 to $200.00 (paralegals), and are $200.000 to $210.00 for other
professionals. Hourly rates are revised periodically to reflect the current cost for delivery of legal
services and the fees charged for services under this engagement may change without notice. From
ﬁmetoﬁmeWBApmpueammoranda,agremneﬂsmothwdocmnenmbasedupmcunmt
legislative, State and Federal law concerns that are the subject of common interest and benefit to onr
clients. WBA allocates the fees for this work on an equitable basis to clients who benefit from this
legal work by WBA s personnel. If you do not wish to receive this information, please advise us

2154 E. Commons Ave., Ste. 2000 | Centennial, CO 80122

| P303.858.1800 F 303.858.1801 | WhiteBearAnkele.com



Board of Directors

Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District

RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON
August 21, 2019

Page 2 of 5

accordingly. WBAcontactswithotherhwﬁrméfortheperﬁurmmoeofspeciaﬁzedservices. In the
event that these services mmndeedonbehalfoftheCﬁmt,fhefeesmdcostsassoﬁatedwiththose
services will be réflected on WBA's bill.

Inaddiﬁontolegalfees,WBAalsbcha:gesforcminout-oﬁpocketoostsimmredbyusin
Tepresenting you. Charges for long distance telephone calls (domestic only), conference calling
services (domestic only), facsimiles (domestic only), in-office copying, ordinary postage (ander
$10.00), and deliveries made by in-house staff covered by an administrative fee, currently equal
m2.5%oftheiegalfaeschuged.Thisadminisuuﬁvefeeisinlieuofitemizingmoseapensesand
maybeadiustedoverﬁme.Ifthﬂ'eareothm'expenses,suchasﬁlingandreeordingfeee,computer-
assisted research fees, mileage, delivery service fees, travel, meals or hotel accommodation charges,
those will be billed separately. lesecostamsubjecttothesamepaymentt&msnslegalfeesmd
are your responsibility. WBA’s policy is to advance or incur expenses on a discretionary basis up to
$1,000.00, subject to your reimbursement of them in the next bill. If an expense will exceed that
amount,wewﬂlukyoutopayitdirecﬂytousinadvanceorhaveyoucon&actdhecﬂywiththe
vendor.

WBAwillnotrequirethepaymentofaretaineratthisﬁme,butworesavetheﬁghttorequire
a retainer if deemed necessary by WBA or if you fail to timely pay invoices.

3. Billing. Generally, invoices for fees and expenses will be submitted to you monthly
and are due upon receipt. Ifaninvoiceremainsunpaidaﬁatbirty(m)days,wewﬂlconsideritin
defm:ltandyouagreethatwemaychargealatefeeonallmnountsdueandowingattherateofone
percent (1%) compounded monthly, Bysignauuebelow,youagreetopgyal]fees, costs and expenses

billed by WBA Tor thie legal services. IT payments as described above &re nof paid on & timely basis,
WBAmywithdrawﬁomtheWaﬁthcewﬁhtheRﬂesomefesﬁonﬂCmdm
In the event that WBA is compelledtoresorttocollecﬁonofym:raocount, which may or may not
includelitigation,yuuagreeﬂmtyourobligationstoWBAshaHimh;depaymentofalloostsand
expenses of such collection efforts, includinig court fees and costs, attorneys’ fees and out-of-pocket
expenses.

4. Attorney-Client Relationship, In performing our services as general counsel to the
District, the District will be our client, We will represent the interests of the District, acting through
its duly authorized management and at the Board of Directors’ (the “Board” or “Directors”) direction.
We do not represent the interests of any of the Board, the Directors individually, or the District’s
employees. Nothing in this engagqnentagreementandnothinginourstatqnentsmyuuwiﬂbe

of opinion only. Further, neither WBA nor any of its attorneys or employees shall be employed,
retained, or otherwise categorized as a “municipal advisor” to the District as such term is defined in
the 15 U.S.C. 78c-4(e)(d)Xc), as amended by the Dodd/Frank Act (the “Act”), or any rules
promuigated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Act. Any comments or advice
provided by WBA or its attorneys regarding the issuance of securities by the District shall be solely



Board of Directors

Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District

RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON
August 21, 2019

Page 3 of §

of a “traditional legal nature”, as permitted under the Act. Throughout the attorney-client
relationship, the District consents to the use of the District’s name and public information relating to
the District’s transactions on WBA’s website or in other marketing materials.

LR Contflicts of Interest. We have performed an internal review for potential conflicts
ofintu'eatbaseduponinfomaﬁonyouhmpmvidedtoua. In doing so, we find it important to note
thet we currently represent Cathedral Pines Homeowners Association (the “HOA™). In the event that
yowintereshammbwomeadvmemtheHOA,wewiudiscussowmnﬁmedmgagmnmtwdth

you at that time.

6. Document Retention, WBA maintains its client files electronically and ordinarily
does not keep separate paper files. Wewillscandoctmentsyouorotherssmdtousrelatedmyour
wotk to our electronic file and will ordi 'ymainta.intheelecu'onicversionthroughoutthetmmof
owmgagemmnor,insomeinsmnoes,whﬂeapmﬁculumaﬁerorpmjectispmding. Unless you
instruct us otherwise, with limitedﬂ:cepﬁonsforcemindocumtssuchasoﬁginalredpmpmy
deedsandpromissmynotes,oncesuchdocumentshavebemscannedlnoourelectmnicﬁle,wewill
destroy all paper documents provided to us, Following the conclusion of our services, we will return
the District’s files to the District upon request, unless WBA has not received payment of all
ou:standingfeesandcosts,inwhichcaseWBArew'vestheﬁghttowiﬂ:holdﬂwmmﬁlpuymentis

i i conclusion of our services, we may destroy
the files. PleasenotethatifWBAisdesignatedasthepublicmoordscusﬁodianfortheDistlict
pursvant to §§24-72-202, et seg., C.R.S., WBA will maintain all public records in accordance with
anydulyapprowdmdadoptedretmﬁmmddes&ucﬁmpoﬁcyofthe’Dh&iotmdtheColmadoSmm

Archives or similar regulatory body.

the Rules of Professional Conduct, including nonpayment of legal fees and expenses, all fees incurred
forsmdoesrmdwedthmugh&edahoftamimﬁom,nweﬂuaﬂmshmdexpmmhumvdby
us on your behalf, mustbepeidwithintendaysofrweiptofourﬁnalstntemw. We reserve the right
to charge foranyexh‘aordinaryworkreqwredincomecﬁonwiththeorderlytanaiﬁon of pending

8. Arbitration of Disputes. prdisputearisesregardingourservicesorfeessetforthin
thisengagememleuuoranypriorengagementlettetbetweenyouandWBA, any fee dispute will be
decided by the Colorado Bar Association Legal Fee Arbitration Committee in Denver, Colorado.
ThereisnochngeforthedisputemsoluﬁonsmvicesmovidedbytheLegalFeeArbiﬁaﬁon



Boerd of Directors
Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District
RE:EngaganmofWHszmAnmsTANAm&WAmmN

August 21, 2019
Page 4 of 5

9. Employment Eligibility. WBAhaobymﬂutitdoesnotknowinglyamployor
wmﬁﬁmim&immmmmmwhmmmmmmmm
E-Veriﬁrprosrampmuamto§§8—17.5-101,a:eq.,C.R.S.,inouﬂutovuiﬂrlhatitdounotmploy
any illegal aliens.

10.  Representative CHent Lists, WBA currently meintains a website, firm résumé, and
oﬂwrmateﬂalsﬁ&ruaewﬁthmentmdpotmﬁdcﬁenhmdformaﬂwﬁngpmom. Execution of
this engagement letter provides your consent to WBA's use of the District’s name as a representative
clientofWBAonourwebaite,ﬁrmrémé,andothermataials.

represenhﬁwofﬂwDishictﬁgnmdmNmaoopyofthislmwowoﬁceatyowwﬁen
convenience. By signing below, youacknowledgethatyouhavebemgiventheoppormqityto
dimuﬁiamgagmmlmwiﬂamthuammymmyothwpmmofmchooﬁng.

Sincerely,

WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON
Attorneys at Law

BMD:ecs



Board of Directors
Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District
RE: Engagement of WHITE BEAR ANKHLE TANAKA & WALDRON

August 21, 2019
Page 5 of 5

APPROVED, ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO BY:
Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District

oy
~

Printod Name, WILLIAM . HZETER
St _SOLBIT







LEASE AGREEMENT
(Maintenance Shed)

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (“Lease”) is made and entered into this day of

» 2021—, by and between CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN

DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and subdivision of the State of Colorado, hereinafier

referred 1o as “Lessor”, and A CUT ABOVE LAWN SERVICE , & limited liability

corporation (“Lessee™), whose address or principal place of business is and

hereinafter referred to as 'Leuee“ThepartxestotlusLeasemayberefmedtom&wduallyau
“Party” or collectively as the “Parties.”

RECITALS:
WHEREAS, the Lessor owns a maintenance shed located at {the “Shed™); and

WHEREAS, Lessee desires to lease the Shed according to the terms of this Lease; and

WHEREAS, Lessor is anthorized pursuant to Section 32-1-1001, C.R.S., as amended, to
enter into leases and contracts affecting the affairs of Lessor.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the matual promises contained herein and other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged,
the Parties agree as follows:

TERMS:

For and in consideration of the rents, covenants and agreements herein contained, Lessor
and Lessee hereby agree as follows:

1. LEASE OF SHED. Lessor hereby leases and demises unto Lessee the Shed, subject to
and upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Lease. The Shed is being leased by Lessee in
its “AS-IS" condition, with Lesses accepting all defects, if any; and Lessor makes no warranty of
any kind, express or implied, with respect to the Shed (without limitation, Lessor makes no
warranty as to the habitability, or suitability of the Shed for a particuler purpose).

2. TERM OF LEASE, The term of this Lease shell commence on ——— Febinny 1,
2021 and end on December 31, 2021 , unless terminated sooner, as provided
herein. In addition, either Party shall have the right to extend this Lease for additional 1 year
periods based upon written notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of each term,
subject to a new rental fee to be agreed upon by the Parties. Lessor shall have the right to
refuse any renewal of this Lease in the event of a breach of a material condition of the
Lease by Lessee if such breach has not been timely cured pursuant to the provisions of

this Lease.

T208.0500; 1089414

| Commentad [KBA1]: Neod sddes

| Commented [KSAZ]: Need description of locstion of the shed

Fornatbed: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt



3. USE OF SHED.

2208.0600; 1089414

A Lesseeapeesﬂ:attheShedwﬂlbeusedonlytopaﬁormaehwnesandw
store equipment, supplles, and othcr items needed to fu]ﬁll laudscupe maintenance

{ Pormatted: Infent: Left: 1°, Nobulels or rumbering |

L, Lessee shall not use or permit the Shed to be used for any purposes
prohibited by the laws, ordinances, or regulations of the United States, the State of
Colorado, or other governmental entity with jurisdiction.

D, Lessee shall keep the Shed free of debris and anything of a dangerous,
noxious or offensive nature or which would create a hazard, interference or
alterations at the property on which the Shed is located. [Fam-w=mmu_ag:_ ]

| Formatted: List Parsgraph, Laft, No bulets of pumbaring |
ol {an-uul Font; (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt ]
* "/ Formatbed: Normal, Justifed, Indent: Left: rmmru",i

Numbered + Level; 1 + Numbering Style: A, B, €, ... + Start
at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: I.5'+I|'lde|1tat' 1.75"

i |
5 2
%", | Formwtted: Font: (Default) Tines New Roman, 12 pt

“2% %, %, | Formataad: Font: (Defau) Times New Romen, 12 pt

h "|rumm Font: (Default) Tmes New Roman, 12 pt
"Fomlnuul Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt |
Tm:le:(DMt)m_m_Nememnpt |

| Pormattad; List Paragraph, Left, No bullets or numbering |

| Pormatte: Normal, Justified, Indent; Left: 17, Fist ine: 07,
Nun'umdﬂevu 1 + Numbering Style: A, B, G, .. + Start
ok: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.5 + Indent at; 175"

— A

..~ | Formatted: Font color: Black ]
------ | Pormatiads Indent: Let: 1, Nobuflesornumbering |




et in m.luut:bx the M.-‘rr-'-Bu ard or Walker M

basis (re, Ot gvery lime smeones goe

4, Lesseeherebyngreesmpaytol.essormomhlyrent(‘nent")mthe
amount of each and every month, payable in U.S, Dollars, withont further notice md
without any setoff or deduction whatsocever.

56. _ PAYMENT OF RENT. All payments are to hine made on or before the 15" day
of each calendar month during the terms of this Lease to Lessor by check at the offices oft

¢/a Walker Schooler District Managers -
_614 N Tejon St
Colomdo Sorings, CO 30903

If the term herein commences on a day other than the first day of a calendar month, then Lessee
shall pay to Lessor the rental for the number of days that exist pricr to the first day of the
succeeding month, with a similar adjustment being made at the termination of this Lease.

If the Rent remains unpaid for a period of ten (10) days, & penalty in the amount of $5 per day
will be assessed against Lessee.

LEASE ASSTGNMENT. Lessee shall not assign this Lease and shall not sublet the
Shed, and will not permit the use of said Shed to anyone other than Lessee, its agents, or
employees, without the prior written consent of Lessor.

7.9. | NOTICE. Any notice required erpesmitiod-by this Lease must be delivered in
person or sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the party at the address
as hereinafter provided, and if sent by mail it will be effective when posted in the U.S. Mail
Depository with sufficient postage attached thereto:

Lessor: Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District Lessee;
cfo Bill Heeter
Argnt
With a copy delivered to:

2208.0600; 1089414

Aurhiomizg 1'h1-r‘ needs 1o be ganted on g ope-tne

{ Formatted: No bulets or numbertng

*., | Swops 17 Left + Notat 1.63

‘- IHI'IIIIM Font: (N‘Iult)Tl'msNHRﬂn!n,Hhhlw

| Formatbed: Indent; Left; 07, First ne: 0.31%, Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Startat 1+
Agnment: Left + Aigned at: 0.25" + Indent et 0.5, Tab

. Commented [KSA3]: Noed s more informstive description
% ungerstanding of this nccess by permission only concept. ‘Wil fhe

" | shed belocked and the only key 18 in the hands of the district or

"\, | kevin. and the lessce by to ask for and be given peamission to

| Formatted: nghlght
Commentad [R4]: ﬂnmlnhlrgnuhould be baasd upen
the average square foolags used on an annualized basis; Al
chack with Ashley to get an astimate of how much he plans to
_ Use. ~ Bill Heatar

| Pormatbed: Indent: Let: 0", First Iine: 0,257, Tab stops:
036", Left + 1.63" Left + 3", Left + 4.25", Left + 5.5,

|HII|IHH'F0|'I‘IWAHID

[R3]: Pieasa add notfce Information under

| Commanted
paint 7. — Bl Hester

| Commantad [KSAS]: Rebesca — plems complete fio notice

 contact information for the district and the Lossce

B
T

| Formetted: Indert: Left: 0.25", No bullets or rumbering
Fam-u-u Tob stops: 0.2, Left + 0.57, Left + Notat



WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA

& WALDRON ATTORNEYS AT LAW
2154 East Commons Avenue, Suite 2000
Ceatennial, Colorado 80122

Attn: Sean Allen, Esq.

&:10 wﬂleatlonsofthetexmssetﬁ;rﬂ:hermnbytheLesueemayresultm
nnmedlate termination of this Lease by the , in its sole and reasonable discretion.
The Lessor may terminate this Lease at any time with written notice provided to Lessee. Lessee
may terminate this Lease upon thirty (30) days written notice to the Lessor. Upon expiration or
termination of this Lease, either by lapse of time or as otherwise set forth in this Lease, Lessee
shall peaceably surrender the Shed in good condition and repair, except for ordinary wear and
tear. Lessee shall remove all personal property upon such termination and shall repair all damage
to the Lease caused by such removal,

911 w. Nothing in this Lease shall be construed to
waive, limit, or otherwise modify, in whole or in part, any governmental immunity that may be
available by law to the Lessor, its respective officials, employees, contractors, or agents, or any
other person acting on behalf of the Lessor and, in particular, governmental immunity afforded
or available to the Lessor pursuant to Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, §§ 24-10-101, et
seq., CR.S.

2. SUBJECT TO ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND BUDGET. Lessor does not
mmdhuebymmtenmmupl&ﬁscﬂywdlreawmdmdebtorothaﬁnmﬂobhmm
whatsoever. The performance of those obligations of the Lessor hereunder requiring budgeting and
appropnahmofﬂmdsmmbjectmmnuﬂbudgeungmdappmpmumanomlmofmm
Lease will be construed or interpreted as a delegation of governmental powers by the Lessor, or
&8 creating a multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever
of the Lessor or statutory debt limitation, including, without limitation, Article X, Section 20 of
the Constitution of the State of Colorado. No provision of this Lease will be construed to pledge
or to create a lien on any cless or source of Lessor's funds.

113, T CON; TON, IN . The captions and
headmgs usedmttheasearefor identification only and willbedmegardedmmyoonsu'uctton
of the Lease provisions. All of the terms of this Lease inure to the benefit of and are binding
upon both the Lessor and the Lessee.

1. SEVERAPBILITY. If any provision of this Lease is determined to be invalid, illegal,
ormﬂmrtforcebyacourtoflaworrenderedsobylegslauveactthentherﬂnammgprowmons
of this Lease will remain in full force and effect.

5. APPLICABLE I AW, This Lease and all claims or controversies arising out of or

mlanngmthJsLeaumﬂbegovmmdandwnmuedmmcmdmethhmehwoftheSuteof
Colorado, without regard to conflici-of-law principles that would result in the application of any law

2208.0600; 1089414



other than the law of the State of Colorado. Venue for all actions arising from this Lease will be in
the District Court in and for El Paso County, Colorado.

1416, COUNTERPART EXECUTION. This Leasc may be exccuted in seversl
oounm each of which will be deemed an original, and all of which together will constitute
one and the same instrument. Executed copies hereof may be delivered by facsimile or email of a
PDF document and, upon receipt, will be deemed originals and binding upon the signatories
hereto and will have the full force and effect of the original for all purposes, including the rules
of evidence applicable to court proceedings.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have executed this Lease as of the date first
written above.

LESSOR/DISTRICT:
CATHEDRAL FINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

Officer of the District
ATTEST:
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
WHITE, BEAR & ANKELE,
Professional Corporation
General Counsel to the District
LESSEE :
By: 1- e e = T -
As:

2208.0600; 1089414

| Formatied: Tab staps: 0.75", Left



2208.0600; 1085414



Kevin Walker
e e e e e

From: Kevin Walker

Sent: Thursday, January 14, 2021 9:07 AM

To: Rebecca Hardekopf; K Sean. Allen; WILLIAM B HEETER
Subject: RE: Storage Shed lease changes part 2

See below,

Kevin Walker

Walker Schooler District Managers
614 N. Tejon St.

Colorado Springs, CO 80903
Office: (719) 447-1777

Cell: (719) 331-5480

Email: Kevin. W@ WSDistricts.co

Website: www.WSDistricts.co

PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL

This communication and any accompanying documents are confidential, privileged, and intended for the sole
use of the addressee. If you receive this transmission in error, any disclosure, copying, disttibution, or the
taking of any action in reliance upon this communication is strictly prohibited, and any such action shall not
compromise or waive any privileges. If you have received this communication in error, please contact me at the
above email address.

From: Rebecca Hardekopf <rebecca.h@wsdistricts.co>

Sent: Thursday, January 14, 2021 8:52 AM

To: K Sean. Allen <sallen@wbapc.com>; WILLIAM B HEETER <bheeter2@aol.com>
Cc: Kevin Walker <kevin.w@wsdistricts.co>

Subject: RE: Storage Shed lease changes part 2

Thank you Sean, I've made those changes and additions that you commented on.

Bill or Kevin can you help answer these additional questions:

1. Description of Location of the Shed- Tract 3, Cathedral Pines Subdivision Filing No. 2, also known as 5785 Vessey
Dr.

2. Need a more informative description and understanding of this access by permission oniy concept. Will the
shed be locked and the only key is in the hands of the district or kevin, and the lessee has to ask for and be given
permission to access the shed each and every time?? We will be getting a security system that will monitor all
access so it should be ok for the lessee to access at any time.

3. Do we know the sguare footage from Ashley - The rent charges should be based upon the average square
footage used on an annualized basis; I'll check with Ashley to get an estimate of how much he plans to use. — Bill

Heeter
4. Also, Bill if you could review the comments and edits Sean made to make sure everything looks good to you.

Thank youl

Y

wikd v MR

[ N T TS

'S



Kevin Walker
m

From: WILLIAM B HEETER <bheeter2@aol.com>
Sent: Thursday, January 14, 2021 9:29 AM

To: Rebecca Hardekopf

Ce: Kevin Walker

Subject: Re: Storage Shed lease changes part 2

Please see my comments below.

—Original Message--—
From: Rebecca Hardekopf <rebecca.h@wsdistricts.co>
To: K Sean. Allen <sallen@wbapc.com>; WILLIAM B HEETER <bheeter2@aol.com>

Cc: Kevin Walker <kevin.w@wsdistricts.co>
Sent: Thu, Jan 14, 2021 8:52 am
Subject: RE: Storage Shed iease changes part 2

Thank you Sean, I've made those changes and additions that you commented on.

Bill or Kevin can you help answer these additional questions:

1. Description of Location of the Shed

Kevin will provide.

2. Need a more informative description and understanding of this access by permission only concept. ‘Will
the shed be locked and the only key is in the hands of the district or kevin, and the lessee has to ask for and be

given permission to access the shed each and every time??

Access to the shed is obtained by either having a key (Warren Management and Walker-
Schooler) or having the code to the lock box attached to the exterior door which contains an entry key
(which Ecton and | use). A Cut Above would be given one key as well. If anyone else from either A
Cut Above, Cathedral Pines or a potential lessor wants access to the Storage Shed, they would need
to gain permission from either Warren Management, Walker-Schooler or me. Once that permission is
granted A Cut Above should be notified of this change. We will make our best effort to minimize the
number of people with access to the shed. However, once access is given to another party, they
would not have to request authorization for access again. (Doing so would force us to constantly
change the lock box code, which seems unnecessary.) Also, with a new security system installed,
each entrant shall be given a unique access code to disarm the alarm system.

3. Do we know the square footage from Ashley - The rent charges should be based upon the average
square footage used on an annualized basis; I'l check with Ashley to get an estimate of how much he plans to

use. — Blil Heeter

Yes, | just heard from Ashley—they want to rent the entire facility (less the area the Metro District uses), which
is approx. 2,000 sq. ft. Annualized rent would be $5/sq.1t./yr., or approx. $9,167 for the 11 month initial term

4. Aiso, Bill if you could review the comments and edits Sean made to make sure everything looks good to
you.



Rebecca, all looks good except for a few minor issues. First, we probably want to require the Lessee to have
insurance on all of their equipment. Second, in section 3.A. on the 8th line Sean missed the word "agrees,”
which should be added. Third, in that same section, | don't really think we need the noise provision as we
seldom spend any time at the facility. Fourth, we have also agreed to allow A Cut Above the non-exclusive
right to store additional equipment on our property right outside of the the shed. We probably need to include
some walver of liability for that as well. Finally, in Section 9 | changed the notice contact to Kevin rather than
me, since my participation is based upon the Board's decision.

Thank you! And thank you!
) ﬁ‘

[Ty e
TN 11 R

Rebecca Hardekopf
Walker Schooler District Managers
614 N. Tsjon St.

Colorado Springs, CO 80203

Office: {(719) 447-1777 ext: 103

Email: .h districts.
Webslte: www.WSDlstricts.co

PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL
This communication and any accompanying documents are confidentlal and privileged. They are intsnded for the sole use of the addressee. I you

receive this iransmission in emror, you are advised that any disciosure, copying, distribution, or the taking of any action in reflance upon this
communication is strictly prohibited. Morecver, any such disclosure shall not compromise or waive any privileges. If you have received ihis
communication In error, pleasse contact me at the above email address.

From: K Sean. Allen <sallen@wbapc.com>

Sent: Wednesday, January 13, 2021 4:52 PM

To: Rebecca Hardekopf <rebecca.h@wsdistricts.co>; WILLIAM B HEETER <bhester2@aol.com>
Cc: Kevin Walker <kevin.w@wsdlstricts.co>

Subject: RE: Storage Shed lease changes part 2

In light of the comments by Bill | felt it wise to add in & few more provisions to the Lease. | have attached a further
redlined version.

There are some comments/questions that still need (o be resolved (see comments In the redline draft).
Thank you.

SeAN ALLEN, ESQ.
OF COUNSEL
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON

303.858.1800 MAIN
sallen@whapc.com

CONFIDENTIALITY AND PRIVILEGE NOTICE:; The information contalned In this emall message, and any files transmitted with It, may be privileged,
confidential, and exempt from disclosure under epplicable law. This emall messege Is Intsnded oniy for the uss of the individusl(s) or entity{ies) to whom
It Is addressed. If the reader of this message s not the Intsnded reciplent, or the employee or agent responaibis tc deliver It to the intended recipient, you
ars hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copylng of this emall is strictly prohibited. If you have recsiverd this amall in eror, pleass notify
us immediately by tslephone or by reply amall and delste the message and any coples from your computer.

From: Rebecca Hardekopf [mallto:rebecca.h@wsdistricts.co]
Sent: Monday, January 11, 2021 11:34 AM

To: WILLIAM B HEETER <bheeter2@aol.com>; K Sean. Allen <sallen@wbapc.com>

Cc: jamie@warrenmamt.com; Kevin Walker <keyin.w districts.co>
Subject: RE: Storage Shed lease changes

Good Morming Sean,






2021 Maintenance Calendar

Annual flowers planted end of May/ first of June
Pond - Fish installation

Cathedral Pines Metro District
JANUARY JULY
Reserve Study overview of capital improvements
Lodge review of maintenance for 2021
A Cut Above renewal
|
FEBRUARY AUGUST
Fire extinguisher maintsnance Present reserve study bids to board
Fire place maintenance Review snow removal with A Cut Above
Updates on security
Review tree removal/trimming for common areas
Confirm contracts for Asphalt & parking
TV o . 5 .
Reserve study preparation for budget 2022
Maintenance — lodge updates Review current contracts
Interior/ exterior
Staining lodge/ parking lot
Carpet/floor cleaning; painting; updates if needed
APRIL ; OCTOBER
Pond start up Contracts review for 2022 budget
Pond maintenance (Solitude Lake Management) Planning for 2022
Irrigation start up
Review landscape improvements items with A Cut Fall Clean up- lodge & common areas
Above for summer months Lodge:
Lodge: Window cleaning
Window cleaning Turn off pond
MAY | NOVEMBER
[ Landscape maintenance begins on medians and lodge HOA Annus) meeting/Metro District updates
through Cctober Heering for the 2022 Budget

Holiday Décor added to the lodge

JUNE

Weekly follow up with A Cut Above

Irrigation updates/ maintenance/ native grass mowing
Continues through October

"DECEMBER

2021 Contracts:
WMG - Maintenance management
A Cut Above Maintenance/Snow removal

Solitude Lake Management {April through October)

Adhoc no contract as needed - refrigerator plus; fire extinguisher; fire place maintenance;
HVAC maintenance; carpet/floor cleaning; handyman work; electrician work

Presented by Jamie Adams, Managing Agent for Maintenance Cathedral Pines Meiro District







LICENSE AGREEMENT AND WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIABILITY
(Landscape Maintenance Activities)

This LICENSE AGREEMENT AND WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIABILITY

{Landscape Maintenance Activitics) (the “Agreement”) is entered imto this __ day of

. 2020, by and between Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District, a quasi-municipal

corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District™ and

- . &n individual and resident of the District (collectively the “Licensee™). The District and
Licensee are collectively referred to herein as the “Partfes.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District owns and maintains certain real property located in EI Paso
County and within its boundaries (the “Property™), which Property is depicted in the aitached
Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, Licensee is a resident of the District and owner of a residential lot located
directly adjacent to a portion of the Property (the “Licensee’s Property™), which is also depicted
on the attached Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, Licensee desires to enter upon the portion of the Property adjacent to
Licensee’s Property, which is depicted on Exhibit A (the “Maintenance Property™), in order to,
on a voluntary basis, mow weeds and grass, mitigate the growth of weeds, and remove fallen tree
branches and tree limbs (the “Landscape Maintenance Activities); end

WHEREAS, the District desires to allow the Licensee to enter the Maintenance Property
for the sole purpose of conducting the Landscape Maintenance Activities, subject to the terms and
conditions contained herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the mutual covenants herein
contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are
hereby acknowledged, the District and the Developer agree as follows:

COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS

1. Access to_Maintepance Property. Licensee is permitted to access and use the
Maintenance Property solely for the purpose of performing the Landscape Mzintenance Activities
at its sole cost and expense. Licensee is prohibited from using the Maintenance Property for any
other purposes whatsoever without the prior written consent of the District. Licensee understands
that this Agreement is restricted to the Licensee, and no Licenses’s guests, invitees, agents,
contractors, subcontractors, employees, successors, and/or assigns are permitted or intended by
this Agreement.

2208.4200;1087815

Commaented [KSA1]: Best to use 1 agreement psr
voluriteet, each volunteer nesds to snter into thelr own
| agreement with the district

| Commented [KSAZ]: Each volunteer's adjacent IoTll'Ed-'
be Idunﬂfled on the axhibit

| Commentsd [KSA3]: Kl\dn we need a clear definition
and description of the typs of malntenance activities the
district wants to allow |



2, Term/Termination. The term of this Agreement is indefinite. The Parties hereby
agree that if any of the promises or covenants contained herein are breached by Licensee, this
Agreement will be automatically terminated. Additionally, the District may terminate the
Agreement for canse or convenience at any time upon written notice to the Licensee.

3. Good RepainLishility for Damgge. Licensee agrees to keep and maintain the

Muaintengnce Property in good repair and in substantially the same condition as when the
Agreement commenced and is regponsible for any damage to the Maintenance Property resulting
from the Landscape Maintenance Activities.

4, No Ownership Interest. Licensee’s use of the Maintenance Property shall not be
considered possession of the Maintenance Property. Licensce acknowledges that the rights granted
herein are without covenant of title or warranty of possession of the Maintenance Property.

s, Assignment Prohibited, Licenses understands and agrees not to assign this
Agreement or to sublet any party of the Maintenance Property.

6. Reservation of Rights. In granting this License, District reserves the right to make
full use of the Maintenance Property as may be necessary or convenient in the District’s sole
determination, and District retains all right to maintain, repair, remove, or relocate landscaping
located within the Maintenance Property.

7. Release and Indemnity. The Partics agree that the Agresment also serves to waive
and release the District from any and all Liabilities resulting from the Licensee’s use of the

Maintenance Property and is subject to the following stipulations:

a. Licensee shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the District against any
and all claims resulting from, or in any way arising out of, the Landscape
Maintenance Activities and use of the Maintenance Property by the Licenses,
its guests, licensees, invitees, agents, contractors, subcontractors, employees,
successors, and/or assigns.

b. Licensee releases, waives, discharges, and covenants not to sue the District,
officers, officials, and representatives on account of injury to the person or
property resulting from, or in any way arising out of the use of the Maintenance
Property by the Licensee.

¢. The Licensee’s waiver and release of liability under this Agreement includes
claims resulting from the District’s negligence, and includes claims for personal
injury or wrongful deeth, property damage, loss of consortium, breach of
contract, or any other claim.

2208.4200;1087815



d. The Licensee assumes full responsibility for any property damage or injury
resulting from or arising out of the Landscape Maintenance Activities,

¢. The Licensee acknowledges and agrees that there is potential risk including
injury, death, property damage, and other inherent risks to the Landscape
Maintenance Activities that cannot be anticipated.

f. TheLicensee expressly agrees that the waiver and release of liability under this
Agreement is intended to be as broad and inclusive as is permitted by the law
of the State of Colorado, and further, that if any pert thereof is held invalid, the
remainder of this Agreement shali continue in legal force and effect.

g Bysigning this Agreement below, Licenses acknowledges that he/she have read
this Agreement and voluntarily releases and waives the District of any and all
lisbility.

8. Governmental Immupijty. Nothing in this agreement shall be construed to waive,
limit, or otherwise modify, in whole or in part, any governmental immunity that may be available
by law to the District, its respective officiels, employees, contractors, or agents or any other person
activing on behalf of the District and, in particular, governmental immunity efforded or available
to the District pursuant to the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, Title 24, Article 10, Part 1
of the Colorado Revised Statutes.

9. Compliance with Laws. Licensec agrees to comply with any and ail applicable
federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations and District policies and directives.

10.  Notice. Any notice or demand required herein shall be addressed to the parties at
the following addresses:

To the Licensee:

Email:
Phone:

To the District:
Cathedral Pines Mefropolitan District
C/o Kevin Walker

2208.4200;1087815



Emeil:

Phone:
With a copy to:

White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron

Afttn: Sean Allen, Bsg.

2154 E. Commons Ave, Suite 2000
Centennial, CO 80122

Email:

Phone: {303) 858-1800

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank. Signature Page Follows]

2208.4200;1087815



IN WITNESS THERECF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the date first
written above. By the signature of its representative below, the District and Licetisee each affirm
that it has taken all necessary action to authorize said representative to execute this Agreement.

Licensee:
_, an individual

District:
CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN
DISTRICT

ATTEST:

APFROVED AS TO FORM:

'WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON

Attorneys at Law

General Counsel for the District

ISignature Page to Licensing Agreement and Waiver and Release of Liability (Landscape
Maintenance Activitles) by and between and Cathedral Pines Metropolitan

District]

2208.4200;1087815



EXHIBIT A

2208.4200;1087815






